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This Prospectus Supplement No. 1 amends and supplements the Prospectus dated June 19, 2012 relating to the resale
by selling stockholders identified therein of up to an aggregate of 7,209,375 shares of common stock of Cross Border
Resources, Inc.
This Prospectus Supplement updates and amends information in the subsection of the Prospectus entitled “Description
of Securities---Warrants---Private Offering.”  This Prospectus Supplement is also being filed to update and supplement
the information included or incorporated by reference in the Prospectus with the information contained in the
following reports:

•  Amendment No. 1 to our Annual Report on Form 10-K for fiscal year ended December 31, 2011, which
amendment was filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on August 31, 2012

•  Amendment No. 1 to our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal period ended March 31, 2012, which
amendment was filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on August 31, 2012 and;

•  Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal period ended June 30, 2012, filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on September 20, 2012.

Each above-described report is set forth below.

This Prospectus Supplement No. 1 should be read in conjunction with the Prospectus dated June 19, 2012, which is to
be delivered with this prospectus supplement.  This Prospectus Supplement No. 1 is not complete without, and may
not be delivered or utilized except in conjunction with, the Prospectus, including any amendments or supplements
thereto.

Investing in our common stock involves significant risks. See the section entitled “Risk Factors” beginning on page 5 of
the Prospectus to read about factors you should consider before buying shares of our common stock.

Neither the Securities and Exchange Commission nor any other regulatory body has approved or disapproved of these
securities or passed upon the adequacy or accuracy of this prospectus. Any representation to the contrary is a criminal
offense.

The date of this Prospectus Supplement No. 1 is September 20, 2012. 
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Warrants

Private Offering

The third paragraph of the description of warrants issued in the private offering, which description begins on page 13,
is amended and restated as follows:

The number, class, and price of the common stock underlying the warrants are subject to adjustment from time to time
upon the happening of certain events including a forward stock split, stock dividend, merger, consolidation,
reclassification or reorganization.
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UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K/A
(Amendment No. 1)

(Mark One)
x ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2011

o TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF
1934

For the transition period from _____to _____

COMMISSION FILE NUMBER 000-52738

CROSS BORDER RESOURCES, INC.
(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

NEVADA 98-0555508
State or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization (I.R.S. Employer Identification No.)

22610 US Highway 281 N., Suite 218
              San Antonio, TX             78258

(Address of principal executive offices) (Zip Code)
Registrant's telephone number, including area code: (210) 226-6700

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) of the Act: NONE
Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) of the Act: Common Stock, $0.001 Par Value Per Share.

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a well-known seasoned issuer, as defined by Rule 405 of the Securities Act.
Yes o  No x

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is not required to file reports pursuant to Section 13 or Section 15(d) of the
Act.  Yes o  No x

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was
required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days.   Yes oNo x

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its' corporate Web site, if
any, every Interactive Date File required to be submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T
(§232.405 of this chapter) during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required
to submit and post such files.
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Yes x  No o

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K (s229.405 of this
chapter) is not contained herein, and will not be contained, to the best of registrant’s knowledge, in definitive proxy or
information statements incorporated by reference in Part III of this Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-K. 
o

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer,
or a smaller reporting company. See the definitions of “large accelerated filer,” “accelerated filer” and “smaller reporting
company” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.

Large accelerated filer o Accelerated filer o
Non-accelerated filer   o (Do not check if a smaller
reporting company)

Smaller reporting company x

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Act).   Yes o  No x

State the aggregate market value of the voting and non-voting common equity held by non-affiliates computed by
reference to the price at which the common equity was sold, or the average bid and asked price of such common
equity, as of the last business day of the registrant’s most recently completed second fiscal quarter: $23,457,310 as of
June 30, 2011, based on the closing price of $2.14 as quoted by the OTC Bulletin Board on that date.

Indicate the number of shares outstanding of each of the registrant’s classes of common stock, as of the latest
practicable date. As of August 30, 2012, the Registrant had 16,151,946 shares of common stock outstanding.
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EXPLANATORY NOTE

On March 15, 2012, we filed our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the period ended December 31, 2011 (the “2011
10-K”) with the SEC.  By this Amendment No. 1, we are amending the 2011 10-K to include corrections to
computational errors in our accounting for business combinations, the under accrual of capital expenditures for
drilling activities that occurred during the fourth quarter of 2011, and the omission of footnote disclosure for our oil
and natural gas properties in our financial statements. Other correcting adjustments with regards to depletion are
being made in this restatement. We have also revised the disclosure in Item 9A to reflect the material weaknesses in
disclosure controls and procedures and internal controls over financial reporting from the filing of our 2011 10-K.

No other changes have been made to the 2011 10-K. This Amendment No. 1 to the 2011 10-K speaks as of the
original filing date of the 2011 10-K, does not reflect events that may have occurred subsequent to the original filing
date, and does not modify or update in any way disclosures made in the 2011 10-K except as set forth above.
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PART II

ITEM 7.  MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS

OVERVIEW

The Company is an oil and gas exploration and production company resulting from the business combination of Doral
Energy Corp. and Pure L.P., effective January 3, 2011, which is described in "Item 1, Business."  The merger impacts
all comparisons to the prior year.  Pure L.P. is the accounting predecessor entity upon which the 2010 numbers are
based.  Additionally, drilling activity increased in 2011 from 2010 levels. There is a lag time of several months
between the expenditure of funds for drilling and completion, and the receipt of revenue from the new wells.

RESULTS OF OPERATION

Summary of Production

The following summarizes our net production sold of oil, expressed in barrels  ("Bbls"), and of natural gas, expressed
in thousand cubic feet ("mcf") for the years ended December 31:

Percentage

2011
2010

(Predecessor)
Increase /
(Decrease)

Oil (Bbls) 56,740 36,963 54 %
Gas (mcf) 252,690 243,229 4 %
Total barrels of oil equivalent* 98,855 77,501 28 %
Average boe per day 270.8 212.3 28 %
* Oil and natural gas were combined by converting natural gas to oil equivalent on the basis of 6 mcf of gas = 1 boe.

This increase in oil and gas sales volumes is due primarily to a combination of increased production from wells added
period over period and increased production brought on through the Pure Merger.  

Set forth in the following schedule is the average sales price per unit and average cost of production produced by us
for the years ended December 31:

Percentage

2011
2010

(Predecessor)
Increase /
(Decrease)

Average sales price:
Oil ($ per Bbl) $86.70 $ 74.51 16 %
Gas ($ per mcf) $6.03 $ 5.72 5 %
Average cost of production:
Average production cost ($/boe) $12.69 $ 4.85 162 %
Average production taxes ($/boe) $5.41 $ 4.88 11 %

4
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Summary of Year End Results

Year Ended December 31 Percentage
2011 2010 Increase /

(As Restated) (Predecessor) (Decrease)
Revenue $ 7,313,149 $ 3,808,879 92 %
Operating costs (7,904,545) (3,105,618) 155 %
Other income (expense) (269,934 ) (420,272 ) (36 )%
Income tax benefit (expense ) - - n/a
Net income (loss) $ (861,330 ) $ 282,989 n/m
n/m - When moving from income to expense/loss, or the reverse, the percentage change is not meaningful.

Revenues

We recognized $6.6 million in revenues from sales of oil and natural gas during the year ended December 31, 2011,
compared to $3.7 million for the prior year.  This increase in oil and gas sales revenue is due primarily to a
combination of increased production from wells added period over period and increased production brought on
through the Pure Merger.  Sales volumes on a boe basis were up approximately 28% for the 2011 over 2010.  In
addition, average prices for the oil and natural gas sold period over period increased.  We report our revenues on wells
in which we have a working interest based on information received from operators.  The recognition of revenues in
this manner is in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

We recognized a $0.6 million gain on the sale of certain oil and gas properties during 2011, with no comparable gain
during 2010.  Other revenue, primarily the recognition of deferred revenues, was $129,915 in 2011, as compared to
$97,436 during 2010. The deferred revenues primarily related to a two-year term assignment to a private party of
certain oil and gas working interests located in southeastern New Mexico beginning in April 2010. Approximately
$32,000 remains to be recognized during 2012.

Operating Expenses

Our operating expenses for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, consisted of the following:

Year Ended December 31 Percentage
2011

(As Restated)
2010

(Predecessor)
Increase / 
(Decrease)

Operating costs $ 1,444,979 $ 450,774 221 %
Production taxes 555,698 379,370 46 %
Depreciation, depletion, and amortization 2,105,851 1,199,365 76 %
Abandonment expense 49,234 - n/a
Accretion expense 84,428 59,269 42 %
General and administrative 3,664,355 1,016,840 260 %
Total $ 7,904,545 $ 3,105,618 155 %

Operating costs were higher primarily as a result of costs related to operated assets acquired in the Pure Merger (the
Stearn properties in Chavez County, New Mexico), environmental remediation and delayed joint interest billings from
an operating partner. Production taxes and depletion were higher as a result of higher production and a larger
depletable base.  We wrote off a dry hole (the Full Moon 29#1, with a working interest of 4.69%) that was spud
during 2010, which will be plugged and abandoned by the operator.  We recognized $3.7 million in general and
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administrative expense ("G&A") during 2011 compared to $1.0 million during 2010.  The increase in G&A resulted
primarily from higher costs for accounting and legal services, consistent with being a public company and
approximately $300,000 in one-time costs related to the merger in January 2011, as well as $681,294 of non-cash
share-based compensation for employees, directors and consultants during 2011, with no comparable costs during
2010, and the addition of three full-time employees following the merger.

5
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Price Risk Management Activities

During 2011, we recognized a net loss of $11,771 on our derivative positions, which includes a non-cash $84,994
mark to market loss (on the remaining term of our crude oil fixed price swaps), reduced by realized a gain of $73,223
for hedge settlements received (for the difference between the hedged price and the market price for the closed
months).

We have two crude oil fixed price swaps in place with one counter-party as of December 31, 2011.  The first swap
covers 1,000 Bbls of oil per month at a price of $104.55 NYMEX-WTI through February 28, 2013. The second swap
covers 2,000 Bbls of oil per month at a price of $93.50 NYMEX-WTI through November 30, 2014.  An additional
crude oil swap was put in place in February 2012 covering 1,000 Bbls of oil per month at a price of $106.50 per Bbl
for a period beginning March 1, 2012 and ending February 28, 2014.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Working Capital and Current Ratio

At December 31 At December 31, Percentage
2011 2010 Increase /

(As Restated) (Predecessor) (Decrease)
Current assets $ 3,488,192 $ 1,737,747 101 %
Current liabilities (3,528,278) (1,849,490 ) 91 %
Working capital (deficit) $ (40,086 ) $ (111,743 ) n/m
Current ratio (0.99 ) 0.94 (100 )%
n/m - When moving from a net liability to a net asset, or the reverse, the percentage change is not meaningful.

Cash Flows

Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, 2011 December 31, 2010

Cash provided by (used in) operating activities $ (1,724,683 ) $ 2,410,828
Cash (used in) investing activities (3,250,793 ) (1,579,929 )
Cash provided by (used in) financing activities 4,473,320 (612,895 )
Net increase (decrease) in cash during period $ (502,156 ) $ 218,004

Cash used in operating activities is calculated by starting with the net income or loss for the period and adjusting for
the non-cash income and expense items during the period, as well as for the change in operating assets and liabilities.

Cash used in investing activities represents the net of capital expenditures, for the drilling of wells and acquisitions of
lease interests, and proceeds from the sale of interests in certain capital assets. The increase in this measure is a
reflection of the increased level of drilling and completion activity for wells on our acreage.

Cash provided by financing activities represents funds from the sale of equity, or new borrowings, reduced by
repayments of indebtedness. The provision in 2011 is primarily the result of the equity offering in May 2011.

Amended and Restated Credit Agreement with Texas Capital Bank
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On January 31, 2011, we entered into an amended and restated credit agreement (the “Credit Agreement”) with Texas
Capital Bank, N.A. (“TCB”), with a maturity date of January 31, 2014.  The Credit Agreement provided the Company
with an initial borrowing base of $4.0 million.  Provided that the trustee for the Company’s Debentures consents, the
amount available under the Credit Agreement may be increased by TCB up to $25.0 million based on the Company’s
reserve reports and the value of the Company’s oil and gas properties.  If the trustee for the Debentures does not
consent, the maximum allowed under the Indenture for the Debentures will be limited to $5.0 million.

The borrowing base was increased to $4.5 million as of December 20, 2011.  At year-end 2011, the balance of the
loan with TCB was $2,381,000 and the available balance was $2,119,000 million under the credit facility.

6
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As of March 1, 2012, the Company's borrowing base was increased to $9.5 million, and $4.3 million was immediately
drawn for the Company's redemption of the Pure Debentures (as described below) and other corporate purposes.  At
March 9, 2012, the balance due on the credit facility was $8.8 million, and the balance available for borrowing was
$0.7 million.

Redemption of Pure Debentures

On January 31, 2012, the Company called for payment prior to maturity all of the debentures originally issued by Pure
L.P. pursuant to the provisions of the Trust Indenture dated as of March 1, 2005 (the “Pure Debentures”).  The
redemption of the Pure Debentures was conditional upon the anticipated increase in the line of credit issued by TCB,
and upon such increase, the redemption of 100% of the Pure Debentures was completed on March 1, 2012.

2011 Equity Financing

On May 26, 2011, the Company closed a private offering exempt from registration under the Securities Act of 1933
pursuant to Rule 506 of Regulation D promulgated thereunder.  In the offering, the Company issued an aggregate of
3,600,000 units.  Each unit was sold at $1.50 and was comprised of one share of common stock and one five-year
warrant to purchase a share of common stock at an exercise price of $2.25 per share.  The warrants became
exercisable on November 26, 2011.  The Company agreed to use the net proceeds from the sale of the units for general
business and working capital purposes and not to use such proceeds for the redemption of any common stock or
common stock equivalents.

The investors in the offering received registration rights.  The Company filed a registration statement covering the
resale of the common stock issued and the common stock underlying the warrants issued to the Selling Stockholders
on July 25, 2011, which was declared effective by the SEC on August 5, 2011.  If at the time of exercise of the
warrants there is no effective registration statement covering the resale of the shares underlying the warrant, then the
Selling Stockholder has the right at such time to exercise warrants in full or in part on a cashless basis.

In addition to registration rights, the Selling Stockholders were offered a right of first refusal to participate in future
offerings of common stock if the principal purpose of which is to raise capital.  This right of first refusal terminates
upon the earlier of a sale, merger, consolidation or reorganization of the Company or on May 26, 2012.

Potential Warrant Exercise Proceeds

In connection with the equity offering closed on May 26, 2011, the Company issued warrants to purchase an
aggregate of 3,600,000 shares of the Company’s common stock at a per-share price of $2.25 (the "$2.25
Warrants").  The Company also has outstanding warrants to purchase 3,125 shares of the Company’s common stock at
a per-share price of $5.00.

The $2.25 Warrants contain a limitation prohibiting exercise of the warrants if the shares issued would cause the
holder to own more than 20% of the outstanding stock.  The holder of 2,136,164 of the $2.25 Warrants currently
would be disallowed from exercising those warrants under this provision. If all of the remaining 1,463,836 warrants
are exercised for cash, the Company would receive $3,293,631 in aggregate proceeds.  The $2.25 Warrants became
exercisable in November 2011.  We cannot make assurances that any of the warrants will ever be exercised for cash or
at all.

2012 Capital Expenditures
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We expect to participate in 24 new wells and three work-overs with our operating partners during 2012, in the  Bone
Spring, Abo, Yeso and Wolfberry formations on our Permian Basin leasehold acreage in southeast New Mexico and
west Texas.  Our Board has approved a capital expenditures budget of $12 million for these activities in 2012. In the
first two months of 2012, we participated in three new wells. As of March 9, 2012, one of the three new wells is
completed and producing, while two wells are at total depth and awaiting completion. Additionally, two of the four
wells that were awaiting completion at December 31, 2011 have now been put on production.     The remaining two
wells are undergoing completion activities.

7
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OFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS

We have no significant off-balance sheet arrangements that have or are reasonably likely to have a current or future
effect on our financial condition, changes in financial condition, revenue or expenses, results of operations, liquidity,
capital expenditures or capital resources that is material to our stockholders.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES

Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations discusses our consolidated
financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America. The preparation of these financial statements requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. On an ongoing basis, management evaluates
the estimates and judgments, including those related to revenue recognition, recovery of oil and gas reserves,
financing operations, and contingencies and litigation.

Oil and Gas Properties

We use the successful efforts method of accounting for oil and gas producing activities.  Costs to acquire mineral
interests in oil and gas properties, to drill and equip exploratory wells that find proved reserves, to drill and equip
development wells and related asset retirement costs are capitalized.  Costs to drill exploratory wells that do not find
proved reserves, geological and geophysical costs, and costs of carrying and retaining unproved properties are
expensed.

Unproved oil and gas properties that are individually significant are periodically assessed for impairment of value, and
a loss is recognized at the time of impairment by providing an impairment allowance.  Capitalized costs of producing
oil and gas properties, after considering estimated residual salvage values, are depreciated and depleted by the
unit-of-production method.

On the sale or retirement of a complete unit of a proved property, the cost, and related accumulated depreciation,
depletion, and amortization are eliminated from the property accounts, and the resultant gain or loss is recognized.  On
the retirement or sale of a partial unit of proved property, the cost is charged to accumulated depreciation, depletion,
and amortization with a resulting gain or loss recognized in income.

On the sale of an entire interest in an unproved property for cash or cash equivalent, gain or loss on the sale is
recognized, taking into consideration the amount of any recorded impairment if the property had been assessed
individually.  If a partial interest in an unproved property is sold, the amount received is treated as a reduction of the
cost of the interest retained.

Reserve Estimates

Our estimate of proved reserves is based on the quantities of oil and gas that geological and engineering data
demonstrate, with reasonable certainty, to be recoverable in future years from known reservoirs under existing
economic and operating conditions. The accuracy of any reserve estimate is a function of the quality of available data,
engineering and geological interpretation and judgment. For example, we must estimate the amount and timing of
future operating costs, severance taxes, development costs and workover costs, all of which may in fact vary
considerably from actual results. In addition, as prices and cost levels change from year to year, the estimate of proved
reserves also changes. The future drilling costs associated with reserves assigned to proved undeveloped locations
may ultimately increase to an extent that these reserves may be later determined to be uneconomic. For these reasons,
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estimates of economically recoverable quantities of oil and natural gas attributable to any particular group of
properties, classifications of such reserves based on risk of recovery, and estimates of future net cash flows expected
there from may vary substantially. Any significant variance in the assumptions could materially affect the estimated
quantity and value of the reserves, which could affect the carrying value of our oil and natural gas properties and/or
the rate of depletion of the oil and natural gas properties. Actual production, revenues and expenditures, with respect
to our reserves, will likely vary from estimates and such variances may be material. We contract with independent
engineering firms to provide reserve estimates for reporting purposes.

Despite the inherent imprecision in these engineering estimates, our reserves are used throughout our financial
statements. For example, since we use the units-of-production method to amortize our oil and gas properties, the
quantity of reserves could significantly impact our depreciation, depletion and amortization expense. Finally, these
reserves are the basis for our supplemental oil and gas disclosures.

8
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Impairment of Oil and Natural Gas Properties

We review our oil and natural gas properties for impairment at least annually and whenever events and circumstances
indicate a decline in the recoverability of their carrying value. We estimate the expected future cash flows of our oil
and natural gas properties and compare such future cash flows to the carrying amount of the properties to determine if
the carrying amount is recoverable. If the carrying amount exceeds the estimated undiscounted future cash flows, we
will adjust the carrying amount of the oil and natural gas properties to their fair value. The factors used to determine
fair value include, but are not limited to, estimates of proved reserves, future commodity pricing, future production
estimates, anticipated capital expenditures, and a discount rate commensurate with the risk associated with realizing
the expected cash flows projected. Given the complexities associated with oil and natural gas reserve estimates and
the history of price volatility in the oil and natural gas markets, events may arise that would require us to record an
impairment of the recorded book values associated with oil and natural gas properties. We have not recognized
impairments in either the current nor prior year. However, there can be no assurance that impairments will not be
required in the future.

Revenue and Cost Recognition

We use the sales method to account for sales of crude oil and natural gas. Under this method, revenues are recognized
based on actual volumes of oil and gas sold to purchasers. The volumes sold may differ from the volumes to which the
Company is entitled based on the interest in the properties.  Costs associated with production are expensed in the
period incurred.

Stock-based Compensation.

We estimate the fair value of stock option awards on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option pricing model.
This valuation method requires the input of certain assumptions, including expected stock price volatility, expected
term of the award, the expected risk-free interest rate, and the expected dividend yield of the Company’s stock. The
risk-free interest rate used is the U.S. Treasury yield for bonds matching the expected term of the option on the date of
grant. Our dividend yield is zero, as we do not pay a dividend. Because of our limited trading experience of our
common stock and limited exercise history of our stock option awards, estimating the volatility and expected term is
very subjective. We base our estimate of our expected future volatility, along with our own limited trading history
while operating as an oil and natural gas producer. Future estimates of our stock volatility could be substantially
different from our current estimate, which could significantly affect the amount of expense we recognize for any
future stock-based compensation awards.

Income Taxes

Income taxes are provided for the tax effects of transactions reported in the financial statements and consist of taxes
currently payable plus deferred income taxes related to certain income and expenses recognized in different periods
for financial and income tax reporting purposes. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities represent the future tax
return consequences of those differences, which will either be taxable or deductible when assets are recovered or
settled. Deferred income taxes are also recognized for tax credits that are available to offset future income taxes.
Deferred income taxes are measured by applying currently enacted tax rates to the differences between financial
statement and income tax reporting. We periodically assess the realizability of our deferred tax assets. If we conclude
that it is more likely than not that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized under accounting
standards, the tax asset would be reduced by a valuation allowance. We consider future taxable income in making
such assessments. Numerous judgments and assumptions are inherent in the determination of future taxable income,
including factors such as future operating conditions (particularly as related to prevailing oil and natural gas prices).
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Derivatives

Derivative financial instruments that are utilized to manage or reduce commodity price risk related to our production
are accounted for under the provisions of Accounting Standards Codification ("ASC") 815-25 (formerly SFAS No.
133 “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities”). Under this pronouncement, derivatives are
carried on the balance sheet at fair value. If the derivative is not designated as a hedge, changes in the fair value are
recognized in other income (expense).

We are permitted to net the fair values of derivative assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes, if such
assets and liabilities are with the same counterparty and subject to a master netting arrangement. We have elected to
employ net presentation of derivative assets and liabilities when these conditions are met. We routinely exercise our
contractual right to net realized gains against realized losses when settling with our swap counterparty.

9
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Business Combinations

We follow ASC 805, Business Combinations (“ASC 805”), and ASC 810-10-65, Consolidation (“ASC 810-10-65”). ASC
805 requires most identifiable assets, liabilities, non-controlling interests, and goodwill acquired in a business
combination to be recorded at “fair value.” The statement applies to all business combinations, including combinations
among mutual entities and combinations by contract alone. Under ASC 805, all business combinations will be
accounted for by applying the acquisition method. Accordingly, transactions costs related to acquisitions are to be
recorded as a reduction of earnings in the period they are incurred and costs related to issuing debt or equity securities
that are related to the transaction will continue to be recognized in accordance with other applicable rules under U.S.
GAAP. ASC 810-10-65 requires non-controlling interests (previously referred to as minority interests) to be treated as
a separate component of equity, not as a liability or other item outside of permanent equity. The statement applies to
the accounting for non-controlling interests and transactions with non-controlling interest holders in consolidated
financial statements.

ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA.

Index to Financial Statements:

Audited financial statements as of December 31, 2011, including:

Financial Statements of Cross Border Resources, Inc.

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm F-1
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2011 and 2010 F-2
Consolidated Statements of Expenses for the years ended December 31, 2011 and
2010

F-4

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2011 and
2010

F-5
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Robert F. Darilek, C.P.A
.
Steven H. Butler, C.P.A.
2702 N. Loop 1604 East, Ste. 202
San Antonio, Texas 78232
Phone (210) 979-0055
Fax (210) 979-0058

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and
Stockholders of Cross Border Resources, Inc.
San Antonio, Texas

We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of Cross Border Resources, Inc. (CBR) as of December 31, 2011
and 2010 and the related statements of income, stockholders’ equity and comprehensive income, and cash flows for the
years then ended.  CBR’s management is responsible for these financial statements.  Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States).  Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.  The company is not required to have, nor were we
engaged to perform, an audit of its internal control over financial reporting.  Our audits included consideration of
internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the company’s internal control
over financial reporting.  Accordingly, we express no such opinion.  An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements assessing the accounting principles used
and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.  We
believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of CBR as of December 31, 2011 and 2010, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended
in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

As described in Note 1 to the accompanying financial statements of CBR, the beginning retained earnings as of
December 31, 2008 has been restated to correct misstatements from the Company’s previously issued financial
statements.

As described in Note 3 to the accompanying financial statements of CBR, the financial statements as of December 31,
2011 have been restated to correct misstatements from the Company’s previously issued consolidated financial
statements.

/s/DARILEK BUTLER & ASSOCIATES, PLLC
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San Antonio, Texas
March 15, 2012, except for as described in Note 3, as to which the date is August 31, 2012

F-1

Edgar Filing: CROSS BORDER RESOURCES, INC. - Form 424B3

21



Cross Border Resources, Inc.
Balance Sheets

December 31, 2011 and 2010

2011
2010

(Predecessor)
(As

Restated) (As Restated)
ASSETS

Current Assets:
  Cash and cash equivalents $472,967 $ 975,123
  Accounts receivable - production 1,184,544 512,624
  Accounts receivable - related party - 250,000
  Prepaid expenses 1,808,944 -
  Current tax asset 21,737 -
     Total Current Assets 3,488,192 1,737,747

Oil and Natural Gas Properties, Successful Efforts Method:
  Oil and gas properties 34,986,566 19,421,621
  Less accumulated depletion and depreciation (9,667,031 ) (7,328,326 )
     Net Property and Equipment 25,319,535 12,093,295

Other Assets:
  Other property and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation of $126,473 and
$94,759 in 2011 and 2010, respectively 95,988 124,776
  Deferred bond costs, net of accumulated amortization of $344,300 and $293,915 in
2011 and 2010, respectively 159,554 209,939
  Deferred bond discount, net of accumulated amortization of $127,483 and $108,827
in 2011 and 2010, respectively 59,077 77,733
  Other Assets 119,070 112,532
     Total Other Assets 433,689 524,980

TOTAL ASSETS $29,241,416 $ 14,356,022

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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Cross Border Resources, Inc.
Balance Sheets

December 31, 2011 and 2010

2011
2010

(Predecessor)
(As Restated) (As Restated)

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Current Liabilities:
  Accounts payable - trade $1,177,383 $ 875,881
  Accounts payable - revenue distribution 143,215 49,880
  Interest payable 112,659 107,875
  Accrued expenses 484,595 28,460
  Deferred revenues 32,479 162,394
  Notes payable - current 764,278 -
  Bonds payable - current portion 570,000 475,000
  Creditors payable - current portion 186,761 150,000
  Derivative liability - current portion 56,908 -
     Total Current Liabilities 3,528,278 1,849,490

Other Liabilities:
  Asset retirement obligations 1,186,260 508,588
  Deferred income tax liability 21,737 -
  Line of credit 2,381,000 1,582,426
  Derivative liability, net of current portion 28,086 -
  Bonds payable, net of current portion 2,825,000 3,740,000
  Creditors payable, net of current portion 1,352,783 1,656,305
     Total Non-Current Liabilities 7,794,866 7,487,319

TOTAL LIABILITIES 11,323,144 9,336,809
  Commitments and Contingencies (See Note 11)

STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
  Common stock, $0.001 par value, 36,363,637 shares authorized,16,151,946 shares
issued and outstanding at December 31, 2011 16,152 -
  Additional paid-in capital 32,617,690 -
  Retained earnings (accumulated deficit) (1) (14,715,570) 5,019,213
TOTAL STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY 17,918,272 5,019,213

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY $29,241,416 $ 14,356,022

(1) Retained earnings as of December 31, 2010 (as restated) includes all equity accounts, including all Predecessor
partner's capital accounts.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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Cross Border Resources, Inc.
Statements of Operations

For the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010

2011
2010

(Predecessor)

 REVENUES AND GAINS:
 (As
Restated) (As Restated)

Oil and gas sales $6,584,134 $ 3,711,443
Gain on sale of oil and gas properties 599,100 -
Other 129,915 97,436
Total Revenues And Gains $7,313,149 $ 3,808,879

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Operating costs 1,444,979 450,774
Production taxes 555,698 379,370
Depreciation, depletion and amortization 2,105,851 1,199,365
Abandonment and impairment expense 49,234 -
Accretion expense 84,428 59,269
General and administrative 3,664,355 1,016,840
Total Operating Expenses 7,904,545 3,105,618

GAIN (LOSS) FROM OPERATIONS (591,396 ) 703,261

OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE):
Bond issuance amortization (50,385 ) (50,385 ) 
Gain (loss) on derivatives (11,771 ) -
Interest expense (460,275 ) (413,338 )
Miscellaneous other income (expense) 252,497 43,451
Total Other Income (Expense) (269,934 ) (420,272 )

GAIN (LOSS) BEFORE INCOME TAXES (861,330 ) 282,989

Current tax benefit (expense) 142,330 (5,886 )
Deferred tax benefit (expense) (142,330 ) 5,886
Income tax benefit (expense) - -

NET INCOME (LOSS) $(861,330 ) $ 282,989

NET GAIN (LOSS) PER SHARE:
Basic and diluted $(0.06 ) $ —
WEIGHTED AVERAGE SHARES OUTSTANDING:
Basic and diluted 14,945,782 —

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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Cross Border Resources, Inc.
Statements of Cash Flows

For the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010

2011
2010

(Predecessor)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
 (As
Restated) (As Restated)

Net income (loss) $ (861,330) $ 282,989
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to cash used by operating activities:
Depreciation, depletion and amortization 2,105,851 1,199,365
Accretion 84,428 59,269
(Gain) loss on disposition of assets (583,766) -
Share-based compensation 681,294 -
Amortization of debt discount and deferred financing costs 69,041 69,042
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable (577,110) 27,595
Prepaid expenses and other current assets (1,750,195) 18,046
Accounts payable (1,220,118) 590,999
Accrued expenses 372,143 1,129
Deferred revenue (129,915) 162,394
Derivative liability 84,994 -
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES (1,724,683) 2,410,828

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Cash impact of merger, net (62,797) -
Capital expenditures - oil and gas properties (3,980,470) (1,579,929)
Proceeds from sale of interest in properties 799,100 -
Capital expenditures - other assets (6,626) -
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES (3,250,793) (1,579,929)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issuance of common stock, net of expenses 5,090,728 -
Net borrowings (payments) on line of credit 798,574 -
Proceeds from renewing notes 139,359 -
Repayments of notes payable (382,081) -
Repayments of bonds (810,000) (490,000)
Repayments to creditors (266,760) (122,895)
Payments to purchase stock options (96,500) -
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) FINANCING ACTIVITIES 4,473,320 (612,895) 

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (502,156) 218,004
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 975,123 757,119
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 472,967 $ 975,123

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION:
Interest paid $ 183,440 $ 408,307
Income taxes and dividends paid $ - $ -
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The above changes in current assets and current liabilities differ from changes between amounts reflected in the
December 31, 2011 balance sheet due to current assets and current liabilities acquired in connection with the
Company’s reverse acquisition with Pure Energy Group, Inc. and Pure Gas Partners II, LP, as more fully described in
Note 1 to the unaudited financial statements.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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Cross Border Resources, Inc.
Statements of Stockholders’ Equity

December 31, 2011

Retained
Earnings

Additional (Accumulated
Common Par Paid-In Deficit)  Total

Shares* Amount Capital (As Restated)
(As

Restated)
Balance at December 31, 2010,
(Predecessor)
 (as restated) - $- $- $ 5,019,213 $5,019,213
Merger with Doral Energy Corp. - January
2011 12,476,946 12,477 27,115,712 (18,873,453 ) 8,254,736
Shares issued for services 75,000 75 168,675 - 168,750
Share-based compensation - - 512,544 - 512,544
Stock issued for cash, net of issuance
costs of $479,144 3,600,000 3,600 4,917,259 - 4,920,859
Purchase of stock options from employees (96,500 ) (96,500 )
Net income (loss) - - - (861,330 ) (861,330 )
Balance at December 31, 2011 16,151,946 $16,152 $32,617,690 $ (14,715,570 ) $17,918,272

* The Accounting Acquirer was a partnership. Prior years' reconciliations are not shown here as
the format is not comparable.  See the "Reverse Acquisition" section of Note 1 for the prior two
years partners' capital reconciliations.

(1) Retained earnings as of December 31, 2010 (as restated) includes all equity accounts, including all Predecessor
partner's capital accounts.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Cross Border Resources, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements

NOTE 1 – ORGANIZATION AND BUSINESS OPERATIONS

Nature of Operations

The Company is an independent natural gas and oil company engaged in the exploration, development, exploitation,
and acquisition of natural gas and oil reserves in North America.  The Company’s primary area of focus is the Permian
Basin in southeastern New Mexico and western Texas.

Reverse Acquisition

Effective December 27, 2010, the Company completed a 1-for-55 reverse split of its common stock in accordance
with Article 78.207 of the Nevada Revised Statutes (the “Reverse Split”).  The Reverse Split resulted in a decrease in
the Company’s authorized share capital from 2,000,000,000 shares of common stock, par value $0.001 per share, to
36,363,637 shares of common stock, par value, $0.001 per share, with a corresponding decrease in the number of
issued and outstanding shares of the Company’s common stock from 135,933,086 shares to 2,471,544 shares (after
accounting for fractional share interests being rounded up to the next whole number).  Completion of the Reverse Split
was a condition precedent for the merger with Pure Gas Partners II, L.P. (“Pure”).

Effective January 3, 2011, the Company completed the acquisition of Pure Energy Group, Inc. (“Pure Sub”) as
contemplated pursuant to the Agreement and Plan of Merger dated December 2, 2010 (the “Pure Merger Agreement”)
among the Company, Doral Acquisition Corp., the Company’s wholly owned subsidiary (“Doral Sub”), Pure Gas
Partners II, L.P. (“Pure”) and Pure Sub, a wholly owned subsidiary of Pure (Pure Sub and Pure being collectively
referred to herein as the “Pure Energy Group” or the "Predecessor").

Pursuant to the provisions of the Pure Merger Agreement, all of Pure’s oil and gas assets and liabilities were
transferred to Pure Sub. Pure Sub was then merged with and into Doral Sub, with Doral Sub continuing as the
surviving corporation (the “Pure Merger”). Upon completion of the Pure Merger, the outstanding shares of Pure Sub
were converted into an aggregate of 9,981,536 shares of the Company’s common stock. As a result of the Pure Merger,
the previous Pure shareholders owned approximately 80% of the Company’s total outstanding shares on a fully diluted
basis, with the Company’s previous stockholders owning the remaining 20%, immediately following the merger.

The purchase price of the assets of the Company arising from the reverse acquisition with the Pure Energy Group was
$8,085,984, representing eighty percent (80%) of the appraised value of 2,471,511 post-split shares of the Company
which were issued and outstanding immediately prior to the reverse acquisition. The allocation of the purchase price
and the purchase price accounting is based upon estimates of the assets and liabilities effectively acquired on January
3, 2011 in accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") Accounting Standards Codification
("ASC")  805, Business Combinations.
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NOTE 1 – ORGANIZATION AND BUSINESS OPERATIONS (continued)

The allocation of the purchase price is as follows:

(As
Restated)

Cash and cash equivalents $(62,798 )
Accounts receivable 94,810
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 5,769
Proved oil and gas properties 10,336,219
Property and equipment 12,643
Other assets 228,268
Total assets 10,614,911
Accounts payable (378,079 )
Accounts payable- related party (69,917 )
Accrued liabilities (182,110 )
Long-term debt (1,018,322 )
Notes payable to related party (250,000 )
Asset retirement obligation (630,499 )
Purchase price $8,085,984

The statements of income include the results of operations for Cross Border Resources, Inc. commencing on January
4, 2011. As a result, information provided for the year ended December 31, 2011 presented below includes the actual
results of operations from January 4, 2011 to December 31, 2011 and the combined historical financial information for
Cross Border Resources, Inc. (formerly Doral Energy) and Pure for the period January 1, 2011 to January 3, 2011. The
unaudited pro forma financial information for the year ended December 31, 2010 presented below combines the
historical financial information for Cross Border Resources, Inc. and Pure for that period. The following unaudited pro
forma information is not necessarily indicative of the results of future operations:

Year Ended December 31,
2011 2010

 (As
restated) (Predecessor)

Revenues $7,313,149 $6,517,924
Operating income (loss) (602,626 ) (10,832,955)
Net income (loss) (874,245 ) (12,165,051)

Earnings (loss) per share  * $(0.06 ) $(0.98 )

* For purposes of this pro forma presentation of earnings per share we have assumed the same number of shares
outstanding in the prior year periods as were outstanding in the current year periods.
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NOTE 1 – ORGANIZATION AND BUSINESS OPERATIONS (continued)

The following table shows a reconciliation of the Partners' Capital accounts for our Predecessor for the years ended
December 31, 2010 and 2009.

Class A Class B Class C Non-
Limited Limited Limited General controlling
Partners Partners Partners Partner Interest Total

Balance as Previously Reported
  –  December 31, 2008 $37,638 $4,995,302 $12,566 $32,494 $987,236 $6,065,236
       Prior Period Adjustment (127,644 ) (42,906 ) (42,906 ) (1,071 ) - (214,527 )
Balance as Restated
  –  December 31, 2008 (90,006 ) 4,952,396 (30,340 ) 31,423 987,236 5,850,709
      Less: Distributions - - - - (26,838 ) (26,838 )
       Net Income (Loss) (619,449 ) (208,218 ) (208,218 ) (5,205 ) (46,557 ) (1,087,647)
Balance – December 31, 2009 (709,455 ) 4,744,178 (238,558 ) 26,218 913,841 4,736,224
      Net Income (Loss),
          as Restated 79,113 34,704 137,560 1,266 30,346 282,989
       Conversion of Options
          Exercised 296,028 - 648,159 - (944,187 ) -
Balance – December 31, 2010,
  as Restated $(334,314 ) $4,778,882 $547,161 $27,484 $- $5,019,213

Basis of presentation

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles in the United States of America (“GAAP”) and the Securities and Exchange Commission Act 1934.

The Balance Sheet as of December 31, 2011 and the Statements of Operations and Cash Flows for the year ended
December 31, 2011 include the accounts of the predecessor company Pure for the period of January 1, 2011 to
January 3, 2011 and the accounts of Pure and the Company for the period January 4, 2011 (date of reverse acquisition
as discussed above) to December 31, 2011 (collectively, “Cross Border Resources, Inc.” or the “Company”). The
comparative Balance Sheet as of December 31, 2010 and the Statements of Operations and Cash Flows for the year
ended December 31, 2010 represent the accounts of Pure only, as Predecessor.  The consolidation effected by the
business combination has been accounted for as a reverse acquisition wherein Pure is treated as the acquirer for
accounting purposes.

In the opinion of management, all adjustments (consisting of normal recurring adjustments) considered necessary for a
fair presentation have been included. Certain reclassifications have been made to the prior period to conform to
current presentation.

Prior Period Correction of an Error (2010)

In Pure’s 2010 financial statements, the Company recorded goodwill in connection with the 2005 acquisition of Pure
Energy Group, Inc. During 2011, the Company re-evaluated its obligations with respect to its initial accounting for the
transaction and determined that consideration paid in excess of the fair market value of the assets and liabilities
transferred should have been allocated to the acquired oil and gas properties and subsequently tested for impairment.
As a result, the Company retroactively stated its oil and gas properties as of December 31, 2010 to reflect the
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allocation of goodwill. In addition, the Company did not consider the need to impair the value of its acquired oil and
gas properties based on the future cash flows of the assets. The correction of this error reduced net income for the year
ended December 31, 2010 by $320,660 and beginning retained earnings as of January 1, 2010 was adjusted by the
same amount.  The tax effect of this transaction was determined to be immaterial to the overall financial statements.
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NOTE 2 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues,
expenses and related disclosures.  Actual results could differ from those estimates and assumptions.  Significant
estimates include volumes of oil and gas reserves used in calculating depletion of proved oil and natural gas properties
and costs to abandon oil and gas properties.

Management believes that it is reasonably possible the following material estimates affecting the financial statements
could significantly change in the coming year: (1) estimates of proved oil and gas reserves, and (2) forecast forward
price curves for natural gas and crude oil. The oil and gas industry in the United States has historically experienced
substantial commodity price volatility, and such volatility is expected to continue in the future. Commodity prices
affect the level of reserves that are considered commercially recoverable; significantly influence the Company’s
current and future expected cash flows; and impact the PV10 derivation of proved reserves.

Oil and Gas Properties

Successful Efforts Method

We use the successful efforts method of accounting for oil and gas producing activities.  Costs to acquire mineral
interests in oil and gas properties, to drill and equip exploratory wells that find proved reserves, to drill and equip
development wells and related asset retirement costs are capitalized.  Costs to drill exploratory wells that do not find
proved reserves, geological and geophysical costs, and costs of carrying and retaining unproved properties are
expensed.

Unproved oil and gas properties that are individually significant are periodically assessed for impairment of value, and
a loss is recognized at the time of impairment by providing an impairment allowance.  Capitalized costs of producing
oil and gas properties, after considering estimated residual salvage values, are depreciated and depleted by the
unit-of-production method.

On the sale or retirement of a complete unit of a proved property, the cost, and related accumulated depreciation,
depletion, and amortization are eliminated from the property accounts, and the resultant gain or loss is recognized.  On
the retirement or sale of a partial unit of proved property, the cost is charged to accumulated depreciation, depletion,
and amortization with a resulting gain or loss recognized in income.

On the sale of an entire interest in an unproved property for cash or cash equivalent, gain or loss on the sale is
recognized, taking into consideration the amount of any recorded impairment if the property had been assessed
individually.  If a partial interest in an unproved property is sold, the amount received is treated as a reduction of the
cost of the interest retained.

Business Combinations

We follow ASC 805, Business Combinations (“ASC 805”), and ASC 810-10-65, Consolidation (“ASC 810-10-65”). ASC
805 requires most identifiable assets, liabilities, non-controlling interests, and goodwill acquired in a business
combination to be recorded at “fair value.” The statement applies to all business combinations, including combinations
among mutual entities and combinations by contract alone. Under ASC 805, all business combinations will be
accounted for by applying the acquisition method. Accordingly, transactions costs related to acquisitions are to be

Edgar Filing: CROSS BORDER RESOURCES, INC. - Form 424B3

34



recorded as a reduction of earnings in the period they are incurred and costs related to issuing debt or equity securities
that are related to the transaction will continue to be recognized in accordance with other applicable rules under U.S.
GAAP. ASC 810-10-65 will require non-controlling interests (previously referred to as minority interests) to be
treated as a separate component of equity, not as a liability or other item outside of permanent equity. The statement
applies to the accounting for non-controlling interests and transactions with non-controlling interest holders in
consolidated financial statements.
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NOTE 2 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the balance sheet and statement of cash flows, we consider all highly liquid debt instruments
purchased with maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents. At December 31, 2011 and 2010, we had no
cash equivalents. We may, in the normal course of operations, maintain cash balances in excess of federally insured
limits. We had cash balances of $472,967 and $975,123 as of December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

Accounts Receivable - Production

Accounts Receivable - Production consists of amounts due from customers for oil and gas sales and are considered
fully collectible by the Company as of December 31, 2011 and 2010.  The Company determines when receivables are
past due based on how recently payments have been received and has not experienced a bad debt loss in the last three
years.

Concentrations of Credit Risk

All of our receivables are due from crude oil and natural gas purchasers. We sold approximately 34% and 23% of our
crude oil and natural gas production to two customers during the year ended December 31, 2011. At December 31,
2011, these two customers accounted for approximately 14% and 36%, respectively of Accounts
Receivable-Production. During 2010, we sold approximately 34%, 19% and 15% to three customers.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment is stated at cost. Depreciation is computed on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful
lives ranging from three to ten years.

Asset Retirement Obligation

The Company accounts for asset retirement obligations under the provisions of ASC 410, Asset Retirement and
Environmental Obligations, which provides for an asset and liability approach to accounting for Asset Retirement
Obligations (ARO).  Under this method, when legal obligations for dismantlement and abandonment costs, excluding
salvage values, are incurred, a liability is recorded at fair value and the carrying amount of the related oil and gas
properties is increased.  Accretion of liability is recognized each period using the interest method of allocation and the
capitalized cost is depleted over the useful life of the related asset. Asset retirement obligations as of December 31,
2011 and 2010 were $1,186,260 and $508,588, respectively.

Our asset retirement obligations represent our best estimate of the fair value of our future abandonment costs
associated with our oil and gas properties, including the costs of removal and disposition of tangible equipment, site
and environmental restoration. We estimate the fair value of our retirement costs in the period in which the liability is
incurred, if a reasonable estimate can be made. The determination of the fair value of an asset retirement obligation
generally involves estimating the fair value of the obligation at the end of the property's useful life and then
discounting it to present value using a credit adjusted, risk free rate of return. Estimating future asset removal costs is
difficult and requires management to make estimates and judgments regarding the expected removal and site
restoration costs, timing and present value discount rates. Changes in the estimated useful life and the fair value of the
asset retirement obligation are imprecise since the removal activities will generally occur several years in the future
and asset removal technologies and costs are constantly changing, as are political, environmental and safety
considerations that may ultimately impact the amount of the obligations.
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NOTE 2 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Derivatives

Due to the volatility of oil and natural gas prices, the Company periodically enters into price-risk management
transactions (e.g., swaps, collars and floors) for a portion of its oil and natural gas production. This allows it to achieve
a more predictable cash flow, as well as to reduce exposure from price fluctuations. These arrangements apply to only
a portion of the Company's production, provide only partial price protection against declines in oil and natural gas
prices, and limit the Company's potential gains from future increases in prices. None of these instruments are used for
trading purposes.

All of these price-risk management transactions are considered derivative instruments and accounted for under the
provisions of ASC 815-25 (formerly SFAS No. 133 "Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities").
Under this pronouncement, derivatives are carried on the balance sheet at fair value. These derivative instruments are
intended to hedge the Company's price risk and may be considered hedges for economic purposes, but certain of these
transactions may or may not qualify for cash flow hedge accounting. All derivative instrument contracts are recorded
on the Balance Sheets at fair value.

We are permitted to net the fair values of derivative assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes, if such
assets and liabilities are with the same counterparty and subject to a master netting arrangement. We have elected to
employ net presentation of derivative assets and liabilities when these conditions are met. When derivative assets and
liabilities are presented net, the fair value of the right to reclaim collateral assets (receivable) or the obligation to
return cash collateral (payable) is also offset against the net fair value of the corresponding derivative. We routinely
exercise our contractual right to net realized gains against realized losses when settling with our swap counterparty.

If the derivative is not designated as a hedge, as in our case, changes in the fair value are recognized in Other Income
(Expense) on the Statements of Operations.

Income Taxes

The Company is a taxable entity for federal or state income tax purposes for which an income tax provision has been
made in the accompanying financial statements.  Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are computed annually,
under the provisions of ASC 740 (formerly SFAS No. 109, Accounting for Income Taxes), for differences between
the financial statement and tax bases of assets and liabilities that will result in taxable or deductible amounts in the
future based on enacted tax laws and rates applicable to the periods in which the differences are expected to affect
taxable income.  Valuation allowances are established when necessary to reduce deferred tax assets to the amount
expected to be realized.  Income tax expense is the tax payable or refundable for the period plus or minus the change
during the period in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Differences between the enacted tax rates and the effective tax
rates are primarily the result of timing differences in the recognition of depletion and accretion expenses. These
differences do not create a material variance between the enacted tax rate and the effective tax rate.

Contingencies

Legal - The Company is subject to environmental laws and regulations of various U.S. jurisdictions. These laws,
which are constantly changing, regulate the discharge of materials into the environment and may require the Company
to remove or mitigate the environmental effects of the disposal or release of petroleum or chemical substances at
various sites.
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Environmental - Environmental costs that relate to current operations are expensed or capitalized as appropriate. Costs
are expensed when they relate to an existing condition caused by past operations and will not contribute to current or
future revenue generation.

Liabilities related to environmental assessments and/or remedial efforts are accrued when property or services are
provided or can be reasonably estimated.

Revenue and Cost Recognition

The Company recognizes oil and natural gas revenue from its interests in producing wells when oil and natural gas is
produced and sold from those wells.  Costs associated with production are expensed in the period incurred.
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NOTE 2 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Stock-Based Compensation

ASC 718, "Compensation-Stock Compensation" requires recognition in the financial statements of the cost of
employee services received in exchange for an award of equity instruments over the period the employee is required to
perform the services in exchange for the award (presumptively the vesting period). We measure the cost of employee
services received in exchange for an award based on the grant-date fair value of the award. We account for
non-employee share-based awards based upon ASC 505-50, "Equity-Based Payments to Non-Employees."

Stock based compensation for the year ended December 31, 2011 was $681,294. No related costs were incurred
during 2010 by the Company's predecessor. These amounts are recorded as General and Administrative expenses.

Earnings (Loss) per Common Share

The Company accounts for earnings (loss) per share in accordance with ASC 260 - 10 (formerly SFAS No. 128,
Earnings per Share), which establishes the requirements for presenting earnings per share ("EPS"). ASC 260 - 10
requires the presentation of "basic" and "diluted" EPS on the face of the statement of operations. Basic EPS amounts
are calculated using the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during each period. Diluted EPS
assumes the exercise of all stock options, warrants and convertible securities having exercise prices less than the
average market price of the common stock during the periods, using the treasury stock method. When a loss from
continuing operations exists, as in the periods presented in these financial statements, potential common shares are
excluded from the computation of diluted EPS because their inclusion would result in an anti-dilutive effect on per
share amounts.

Fair value of financial instruments

The carrying value of cash and cash equivalents, accounts payable and accrued expenses and other liabilities
approximates fair value due to the short term maturity of these instruments. The carrying value of the notes payable
are believed to approximate their fair value as of December 31, 2011 based upon the relatively short period until
maturity for these instruments.

New Accounting Pronouncements

In May 2011, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update ("ASU") 2011-04. The ASU is the result of joint efforts
by the FASB and the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) to develop a single, converged fair value
framework. Thus, there are few differences between the ASU and its international counterpart, IFRS 13. This ASU is
largely consistent with existing fair value measurement principles in U.S. GAAP; however it expands ASC 820’s
existing disclosure requirements for fair value measurements and makes other amendments. The ASU is effective for
interim and annual periods beginning after December 15, 2011. The Company does not expect the provisions of ASU
2011-04 to have a material effect on the financial position, results of operations or cash flows of the Company.

In June 2011, the FASB issued ASU 2011-05, which revises the manner in which entities present comprehensive
income in their financial statements. The new guidance removes the presentation options in ASC 220 and requires
entities to report components of comprehensive income in either (1) a continuous statement of comprehensive income
or (2) two separate but consecutive statements. The ASU does not change the items that must be reported in other
comprehensive income. The amendments are effective for fiscal years, and interim periods within those years,
beginning after December 15, 2011. The Company does not expect the provisions of ASU 2011-05 to have a material
effect on the financial position, results of operations or cash flows of the Company.
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In September 2011, the FASB issued ASU 2011-08, which simplifies how entities test goodwill for impairment. This
accounting update permits an entity to first assess qualitative factors to determine whether it is more likely than not
that the fair value of a reporting unit is less than its carrying amount as a basis for determining whether it is necessary
to perform the two-step good will impairment test described in ASC 350. The more-likely-than-not threshold is
defined as having a likelihood of more than 50 percent. ASU 2011-08 will be effective for annual and interim
goodwill impairment tests performed for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2011 with early adoption
permitted. We do not believe that the adoption of ASU 2011-08 will have a material impact on the Company's
consolidated results of operation and financial condition.
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NOTE 2 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

In December 2011, the FASB issued ASU No, 2011-11.  ASU 2011-11 requires an entity to disclose information
about offsetting and related arrangements on its financial position. This includes the effect or potential effect of rights
of offset associated with an entity’s recognized assets and recognized liabilities and require improved information
about financial instruments and derivative instruments that are either (1) offset in accordance with Section 210-20-45
or Section 815-10-45 or (2) subject to an enforceable master netting arrangement or similar agreement, irrespective of
whether they are offset in accordance with Section 210-20-45 or Section 915-10-45. The amendments are effective for
annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013 and retrospective disclosure is required for all
comparative periods presented. No early adoption is permitted.

In December 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011-12.  ASU 2011-12 defers changes in Update 2011-05 that relate
to the presentation of reclassification adjustments. ASU 2011-12 is effective for fiscal years, and interim periods
within those years, beginning after December 15, 2011. The Company does not believe that the adoption of ASU
2011-12 will have a material impact on the Company's consolidated results of operation and financial condition.

The Company does not expect that the adoption of recently issued accounting pronouncements will have a material
impact on its financial position, results of operations, or cash flows.

NOTE 3 - RESTATEMENT

On August  27, 2012, the Company filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) a Current Report on
Form 8-K, to report management’s determination that the Company’s consolidated financial statements for the period
ended December 31, 2011, included in its Annual Report on Form 10-K filed with the SEC on March 15, 2012 (the
“2011 Form 10-K”), should not be relied upon due to the misapplication of the technical requirements of generally
accepted accounting principles related to business combination accounting and valuation of acquired oil and gas assets
in connection with its business combination with Pure Energy Group, Inc. In addition, the Company did not properly
accrue liabilities for capital expenditures and operating costs associated with activity that occurred during the fourth
quarter of 2011. Other correcting adjustments with regards to depletion are being made in this restatement.

This amended Annual Report on Form 10-K/A for the year ended December 31, 2011 incorporates corrections made
in response to the misapplication described above by restating the Company’s consolidated financial statements
presented herein for the year ended December 31, 2011.  The corrections to the annual information in this amended
Form 10-K/A had no impact on the Company’s operations or cash flows for the periods being restated.

The Company determined that the business combination accounting presented in the 2011 Form 10-K incorrectly
allocated a portion of the purchase price to goodwill and a portion of the purchase price to an intangible asset.  See
Note 1 for the updated purchase price allocation.  Additionally, the 2011 Form 10-K lacked the required footnote for
oil and gas properties.  See Note 5 – Property and Equipment.
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NOTE 3 – RESTATEMENT (continued)

Cross Border Resources, Inc.
Balance Sheet

As of December 31, 2011
As

Previously
Reported As Restated

Oil and natural gas properties, successful efforts method $30,540,978 $34,986,566

Accumulated depreciation, depletion, and amortization (9,870,830 ) (9,667,031 )

Intangible asset, net of accumulated amortization of 197,616 1,788,541 —

Goodwill 1,395,807 —

Accounts payable-trade 103,759 1,177,383

 Accrued expenses 418,290 484,595

Retained earnings (accumulated deficit) (15,050,680) (14,715,570)

Cross Border Resources, Inc.
Statement of Operations

For the year ended December 31, 2011
As

Previously
Reported As Restated

Depreciation, depletion, and amortization $2,507,266 $2,105,851

Operating costs 1,378,674 1,444,979

Net loss 1,196,440 861,330

Net gain (loss) per share – basic and diluted (0.08 ) (0.06 )

Cross Border Resources, Inc.
Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended December 31, 2011
As

Previously
Reported As Restated

Net loss $1,196,440 $861,330

Depreciation, depletion, and amortization 2,507,266 2,105,851

Accounts payable (1,122,000) (1,220,118)

Accrued expenses 207,720 372,143
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Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 1,724,863 1,724,863
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NOTE 4 - ASSET RETIREMENT OBLIGATION

The following is a description of the changes to the Company’s asset retirement obligations for the period ended
December 31, 2011 and 2010: 

2011
2010

(Predecessor)
Asset retirement obligations at beginning of year $508,588 $ 449,319
Asset retirement obligations acquired in acquisition 630,499 —
Revision of previous estimates (158,452 ) —
Accretion expense 84,428 59,269
Additions 121,197
Asset retirement obligations at end of year $1,186,260 $ 508,588

NOTE 5 – PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Oil and natural gas properties

The historical cost of other property and equipment, presented on a gross basis with accumulated depreciation and
amortization is summarized as follows:

2011
(As

Restated)
2010

(Predecessor)
Oil and natural gas properties $34,986,566 $ 19,421,621
Less accumulated depletion (9,667,031 ) (7,328,326 )
Net oil and natural gas properties capitalized costs $25,319,535 $ 12,093,295

At December 31, 2011 and 2010, the Company excluded $8,068,361 and $6,513,024 of costs, respectively, from the
depletion calculation.

At December 31, 2011, the capitalized costs of the Company’s oil and natural gas properties included $10,336,219
relating to acquisition costs of proved properties which are being amortized by the unit-of-production method using
total proved reserves and $16,581,986 relating to exploratory well costs and additional development costs which are
being amortized by the unit-of-production method using proved developed reserves.

During the year ended December 31, 2011, the Company incurred approximately $2,020,769 in exploratory drilling
costs, of which $49,234 – related to the abandonment of the Full Moon 29-1 well –  was charged to earnings.

Capitalized costs related to proved oil and natural gas properties, including wells and related equipment and facilities,
are evaluated for impairment based on the Company’s analysis of undiscounted future net cash flows. If undiscounted
future net cash flows are insufficient to recover the net capitalized costs related to proved properties, then the
Company recognizes an impairment charge in income equal to the difference between carrying value and the
estimated fair value of the properties. Estimated fair values are determined using discounted cash flow models. The
discounted cash flow models include management’s estimates of future oil and natural gas production, operating and
development costs, and discount rates. The Company recorded no impairment charges on its proved properties for the
year ended December 31, 2011. Impairment expense would be included in abandonment and impairment expense in
the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations.
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Uncertainties affect the recoverability of these costs as the recovery of the costs outlined above are dependent upon
the Company obtaining and maintaining leases and achieving commercial production or sale.
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 NOTE 5 – PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

Other property and equipment

The historical cost of other property and equipment, presented on a gross basis with accumulated depreciation and
amortization is summarized as follows:

2011
2010

(Predecessor)
Other property and equipment $222,461 $ 219,535
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization (126,473 ) (94,759 )
Net other property and equipment $95,988 $ 124,776

NOTE 6 –BONDS & NOTES PAYABLE

7½% Debentures, Series 2005

On March 1, 2005, Pure Energy Group, Inc. and its subsidiary Pure Gas Partners, II, L.P., issued 7 ½ % Debentures,
Series 2005, in the principal amount of $5,500,000.  The Debentures are secured by all revenues of the issuer and all
money held in the funds and accounts created under the Indenture.  The Debentures mature on March 1, 2015, with
principal and interest payable semi-annually on March 1 and September 1.  As of December 31, 2011 and 2010 the
balance payable was $3,395,000 and $4,215,000, respectively.  The balances are shown on the Balance Sheets as
Bonds Payable.  Interest expense for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 was $292,036 and $324,079,
respectively.

Aggregate long-term debt, consisting of the 7½% Debentures, Series 2005, is estimated to be repayable annually as
follows:

2012 570,000
2013 1,020,000
2014 1,175,000
2015 630,000
Total $ 3,395,000

As permitted by the bond debt agreement, the Company purchases bonds back on the open market at its
discretion.  Bonds held by the Company at December 31, 2011 and 2010 totaled $260,000 and $185,000, respectively.
The bonds held at year end 2011 were purchased at a discount of $16,719 during 2011, while those held at the prior
year end were purchased at a discount of $15,145 during 2010.  The bonds held by the Company are shown as a
reduction of bonds payable on the balance sheet as follows:

2011
2010

(Predecessor)
Bonds payable, net of current portion $ 3,085,000 $ 3,740,000
Sinking fund payments due within 12 months 830,000 660,000
   Less: Bonds held by the Company (260,000) (185,000)
Bonds payable, current portion 570,000 475,000
Total Bonds payable $ 3,395,000 $ 4,215,000
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See Note 14 for a discussion of the redemption of all outstanding bonds subsequent to year end 2011.

Notes Payable Green Shoe Investments

In connection with the merger, the Company, as the accounting acquirer, assumed an unsecured loan from Green Shoe
Investments Ltd. (“Green Shoe”).  At that time the principal amount was $487,000 with an interest rate of 5.0%

On April 26, 2011, Cross Border Resources, Inc. (the “Company”) entered into a Loan Agreement with Green Shoe, and
the Company executed and delivered a Promissory Note to Green Shoe in connection therewith.  The amount of the
Promissory.
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NOTE 6 –BONDS & NOTES PAYABLE (continued)

Note and the loan from Green Shoe (the “Green Shoe Loan”) is $550,936 and the purpose of the Green Shoe Loan is to
consolidate and extend all of the loans owed by the Company and its predecessors to Green Shoe including without
limitation the following:  (i) loan dated May 9, 2008 in the principal amount of $100,000, (ii) loan dated May 23, 2008
in the principal amount of $150,000, (iii) loan dated July 18, 2008 in the principal amount of $50,000, (iv) loan dated
February 24, 2009 in the principal amount of $100,000, and (v) loan dated April 29, 2009 in the principal amount of
$87,000 plus accrued interest of $63,936.  The Green Shoe Loan is unsecured.

Beginning March 31, 2011 (the effective date of the Promissory Note), the amounts owed under the Promissory Note
began to accrue interest at a rate of 9.99%, and the Promissory Note provides that no payments of principal or interest
are due until the maturity date of September 30, 2012.  The Company is obligated to pay all accrued interest and make
a principal payment equal to one-third of the principal owed upon the closing of an equity offering resulting in a
specified amount of net proceeds to the Company.  In addition, Green Shoe was granted the right to convert the
principal and interest owed into shares of common stock of the Company at a conversion price of $4.00 per share. The
principal balance of these amounts as of December 31, 2011 is $367,309, which is shown in Current Liabilities on the
Balance Sheets.

Notes Payable Little Bay Consulting

In connection with the merger, the Company, as the accounting acquirer, assumed an unsecured loan from Little Bay
Consulting SA (“Little Bay”).  At that time the principal amount was $520,000 with an interest rate of 5%.

On April 26, 2011, the Company entered into a Loan Agreement with Little Bay, and the Company executed and
delivered a Promissory Note to Little Bay in connection therewith.  The amount of the Promissory Note and the loan
from Little Bay (the “Little Bay Loan”) is $595,423 and the purpose of the Little Bay Loan is to consolidate and extend
all of the loans owed by the Company and its predecessors to Little Bay including without limitation the following: (i)
loan dated March 7, 2008 in the original principal amount of $220,000, (ii) loan dated July 18, 2008 in the original
principal amount of $100,000, and (iii) loan dated October 3, 2008 in the principal amount of $200,000 plus accrued
interest of $75,423.  The Little Bay Loan is unsecured.

Beginning March 31, 2011 (the effective date of the Promissory Note), the amounts owed under the Promissory Note
began to accrue interest at a rate of 9.99%, and the Promissory Note provides that no payments of principal or interest
are due until the maturity date of September 30, 2012.  The Company is obligated to pay all accrued interest and make
a principal payment equal to one-third of the principal owed upon the closing of an equity offering resulting in a
specified amount of net proceeds to the Company.  In addition, Little Bay was granted the right to convert the
principal and interest owed into shares of common stock of the Company at a conversion price of $4.00 per share. The
principal balance of these borrowings as of December 31, 2011 is $396,968, which is shown in Current Liabilities on
the Balance Sheets. 
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NOTE 7 – OPERATING LINE OF CREDIT

As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, the borrowing base on the line of credit was $4,500,000 and $2,350,000,
respectively. The interest rate is calculated at the greater of the adjusted base rate or 4%.  The line of credit is
collateralized by producing wells and matures on January 31, 2014.  As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, the
outstanding balance on the line of credit was $2,381,000 and $1,582,426, respectively.  Interest expense for years
ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 was $96,805 and $52,864, respectively.  The line of credit is reported as
long-term debt because the maturity date is greater than one year. During December 2011, the borrowing base was
increased from $4,000,000 to $4,500,000 on this facility.  At December 31, 2011 our available balance was
$2,119,000.

Effective March 1, 2012, the borrowing base was increased to $9,500,000. Subsequent to year end, the Company has
borrowed an additional $6,419,000, bringing the outstanding balance to $8,800,000 at March 9, 2012.

As of December 31, 2011, the Company was not in compliance with its debt covenants; however the Company
obtained a waiver letter from the lending institution of its covenant violation.

NOTE 8 – CREDITORS PAYABLE

In 2002, the prior owner of Pure Sub filed a petition for reorganization with the United States Bankruptcy
Court.  According to the plan of reorganization, three creditors were to receive a combined amount of approximately
$3,000,000 for their claims out of future net revenues of Pure Sub (defined as revenues from producing wells net of
lease operating expenses and other direct costs).  

The net estimated revenue distribution due to creditors in 2012 based on 2011 net revenues is $186,761 as of
December 31, 2011 and is presented as a current liability.  The net revenue distribution to creditors in 2011 based on
2010 net revenues was estimated at $150,000 as of December 31, 2010 and was presented as a current liability.  As of
December 31, 2011 and 2010, the combined creditors’ payable balance were $1,539,545 and $1,806,305, respectively.

NOTE 9 – OPERATING LEASES

The Company has a non-cancelable operating lease for office space expiring in June 2014.  As of December 31, 2011,
the remaining future minimum lease payments under the existing lease are as follows:

Year Ending December 31,
Operating

Lease
2012 50,000
2013 51,250
2014 26,250
2015 —

Total minimum lease payments $ 127,500

Rent expense related to leases for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 was $55,687 and $159,408,
respectively.

NOTE 10 –RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Company paid $163,000 and $174,500 in consulting fees in the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010,
respectively to BDR Consulting, Inc. (BDR), a member of CCJ/BDR Investments, L.L.C., who owned a combined
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64.108% limited partnership interest in the Pure Gas Partners, L.P.  The president of BDR also served on the Board of
Directors and was the Chief Executive Officer of Pure Energy Group, Inc.  In addition, the Company rented office
space from BDR on a month-to-month basis through September 2010.  The Company paid BDR $18,000 in rental fees
in the year ended December 31, 2010.

The Company has a development contract with Aztec Energy Partners I, L.P. (Aztec), whereby Aztec agreed to fund
100% of costs through completion on certain wells to be drilled in two counties in New Mexico.  Certain partners in
Aztec were also indirect limited partners and members of the Board of Directors of the Pure Energy Group.  On
certain wells, the Company owns a working interest.  On those wells, Aztec will receive working interest and net
revenue interest.  During the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, the Company paid Aztec $379,989 and
$356,145, for Aztec’s share of well income, net of related well costs, based on production.
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NOTE 10 –RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS   (continued)

Aztec Managing GP, LLC (Aztec MP) is the managing general partner of Aztec Energy Partners I, L.P.  The
principals of Aztec MP also served on the Board of Directors of the Pure Energy Group.  During the years ended
December 31, 2011 and 2010, the Company paid Aztec MP $111,297 and $154,314, respectively, for Aztec MP’s
share of well income, net of related well costs, based on production.

At December 31, 2010, the Predecessor had a related party receivable on the balance sheet from Doral Energy
Corporation with a balance of $250,000 with interest payable thereon at a rate of 5% per annum. This loan amount
was settled as part of the purchase price allocation upon the closing of the reverse acquisition on January 3, 2011.

NOTE 11 — COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

On May 4, 2011, Clifton M. (Marty) Bloodworth filed a lawsuit in the State District Court of Midland County, Texas,
against Doral West Corp. d/b/a Doral Energy Corp., Patrick Seale and Everett Willard Gray II.  Mr. Bloodworth
alleges that Mr. Gray, as CEO of the Company, made false representations which induced Mr. Bloodworth to enter
into an employment contract that was subsequently breached by the Company.  The claims that Mr. Bloodworth has
alleged are:  breach of his employment agreement with Doral, common law fraud, civil conspiracy breach of fiduciary
duty, and violation of the Texas Deceptive Trade Practices-Consumer Protection Act.  Mr. Bloodworth is seeking
damages of approximately $280,000.

On December 12, 2011, Red Mountain Resources, Inc. and Black Rock Capital, Inc., as direct and indirect
shareholders of the Company, filed a lawsuit against the Company in the District Court of Clark County, Nevada as
Case No. A-11-653-089-B.  The plaintiffs have asked the Court (i) to order the Company to hold an annual
shareholders’ meeting for the purpose of electing directors, and (ii) to declare that the solicitation or securing of
proxies pursuant to a proxy solicitation made in accordance with the law shall not constitute or be deemed an
“Association” as such term is defined in the Amendment to Bylaws adopted by the Company’s Board of Directors in
November 2011. On January 23, 2012, we filed a motion to dismiss the lawsuit arguing that the complaint failed to
state a claim upon which relief may be granted..  Specifically, we argued that: (i) the Plaintiffs’ claims are derivative in
nature and the Plaintiffs failed to make a demand on the board or plead that such a demand would be futile; (ii) the
Plaintiffs’ request for an order directing us to conduct a meeting of stockholders was not ripe; and (iii) the plain
language of our amended bylaws compels a determination that a proxy agreement is an “Association,” as defined in the
amended bylaws.

Other than the lawsuits described above, we are not currently a party to any legal proceedings outside of ordinary
routine proceedings incidental to our business and which, in the aggregate, do not involve amounts greater than 10%
of our current assets.

The Company, as an owner or lessee and operator of oil and gas properties, is subject to various federal, state and
local laws and regulations relating to discharge of materials into, and protection of, the environment. These laws and
regulations may, among other things, impose liability on the lessee under an oil and gas lease for the cost of pollution
clean-up resulting from operations and subject the lessee to liability for pollution damages. In some instances, the
Company may be directed to suspend or cease operations in the affected area. We maintain insurance coverage, which
we believe is customary in the industry, although we are not fully insured against all environmental risks. The
Company is not aware of any environmental claims existing as of December 31, 2011, which have not been provided
for, covered by insurance or otherwise have a material impact on its financial position or results of operations. There
can be no assurance, however, that current regulatory requirements will not change, or past non-compliance with
environmental laws will not be discovered on the Company’s properties.
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NOTE 12 – INCOME TAXES

Income tax benefit (expense) attributable to income from continuing operations consists of:

Current Deferred Total
(As

Restated)
(As

Restated)
Year ended December 31, 2011:
  U.S. federal $142,330 $(142,330 ) $-

Year ended December 31, 2010:
  U.S. federal $(5,886 ) $5,886 $-

Income tax expense attributable to income from continuing operations was $0 for both the years ended December 31,
2011 and 2010, respectively, and differed from the amounts computed by applying the U.S. federal income tax rate of
15% to pretax income from continuing operations as a result of the following:

Tax Rate Reconciliation 2011
2010

(Predecessor)
 (As
Restated)

Computed “expected” tax rate $(129,200 ) $ 42,448
Increase (reduction) income taxes resulting from:
  Pass-through income (loss) – PGP II - (36,562 )
  Change in valuation allowance 148,216 (5,886 )
  Deferred revenues (30,417 ) -
  Other, net 11,401 -
      Net tax expense $- $ -

Deferred tax assets consist of the following:
2011

2010
(Predecessor)
(As Restated)

Operating loss carry-forwards at beginning of year $ 71,962 $ 77,848
Operating loss carry-forwards acquired at Pure Merger 2,445,021 -
Benefit (expense) 148,216 (5,886)
Operating loss carry-forwards before valuation allowance 2,665,199 71,962
Less: Valuation allowance (2,665,199) (71,962)
Deferred tax asset at end of year $ - $ -

During 2010, deferred tax assets decreased by $5,886 to $71,962 due to the generation of loss carry-forwards that can
be used to offset future taxable income. During 2011, deferred tax assets increased by $2,445,021 due to carry forward
acquired during the Acquisition. These carry-forwards are limited to the lesser of operating income generated from the
Doral legacy assets and the total consolidated operating income of the Company.  In addition, the Company’s
carry-forwards increased by $148,216 due to the generation of loss carry-forward used to offset taxable income.

As of December 31, 2011, the Company had net operating loss ("NOL") carry-forwards totaling $18,050,857 that may
be used to offset future taxable income. These NOL carry-forwards expire at December 31, of the years shown as
follows:
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Year Amount
2023 $351,402
2026 5,165
2027 39,650
2028 454,889
2029 1,991,545
2030 12,673,006
2031 1,303,470
2032 1,231,730

Total NOL carry-forwards $18,050,857
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NOTE 12 – INCOME TAXES  (continued)

In assessing the realizability of deferred tax assets, management considers whether it is more likely than not that some
portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. The ultimate realization of deferred tax assets is dependent
upon the generation of future taxable income during the periods in which those temporary differences become
deductible. Management considers the scheduled reversal of deferred tax liabilities (including the impact of available
carry-back and carry-forward periods), projected future taxable income, and tax planning strategies in making this
assessment. In order to fully realize the deferred tax asset, the Company will need to generate future taxable income of
approximately $18,050,857 prior to the expiration of the net operating loss carryforwards in 2032. The Company was
in a loss position for the year ended December 31, 2011. Based upon the level of historical taxable income and
projections for future taxable income over the periods in which the deferred tax assets are deductible, management
believes it is more likely than not that the Company will not realize the benefits of these deductible differences and, as
such has recorded a valuation allowance for the total amount of carry-forwards at December 31, 2011. The amount of
the deferred tax asset considered realizable, however, could be increased in the near term if estimates of future taxable
income during the carry-forward period are increased.

NOTE 13 - STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY AND EARNINGS PER SHARE

2011 Equity Financing

On May 26, 2011, the Company closed a private offering exempt from registration under the Securities Act of 1933
pursuant to Rule 506 of Regulation D promulgated thereunder.  In the offering, the Company issued an aggregate of
3,600,000 units.  Each unit was sold at $1.50 and was comprised of one share of common stock and one five-year
warrant to purchase a share of common stock at an exercise price of $2.25 per share.   The warrants are exercisable
beginning on November 26, 2011.  The Company agreed to use the net proceeds from the sale of the units for general
business and working capital purposes and not to use such proceeds for the redemption of any common stock or
common stock equivalents.

The investors in the offering received registration rights.  The Company agreed to file a registration statement
covering the resale of the common stock issued and the common stock underlying the warrants issued to the Selling
Stockholders within sixty days after the closing date.  If the registration statement is was not declared effective by the
SEC within the time periods defined within the agreement, then the Company would have made pro rata cash
payments to each Purchaser as liquidated damages in an amount equal to 1.0% of the aggregate amount invested by
such Purchaser for each 30-day period or pro rata for any portion thereof following the date by which such
Registration Statement should have been effective.  If at the time of exercise of the warrants there is no effective
registration statement covering the resale of the shares underlying the warrant, then the Selling Stockholder has the
right at such time to exercise warrants in full or in part on a cashless basis. The Company filed an S-1 registrations
statement registering the shares on July 25, 2011, which was declared effective on August 5, 2011.

In addition to registration rights, the Selling Stockholders were offered a right of first refusal to participate in future
offerings of common stock if the principal purpose of which is to raise capital.  This right of first refusal terminates
upon the earlier of a sale, merger, consolidation or reorganization of the Company or the one-year anniversary of the
Closing Date.

Warrants

In connection with the equity offering closed on May 26, 2011, the Company issued warrants to purchase an
aggregate of 3,600,000 shares of the Company’s common stock at a per share price of $2.25 (the "$2.25
Warrants").  The Company also has outstanding warrants to purchase 3,125 shares of the Company’s common stock at
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a per share price of $5.00.

The $2.25 Warrants contain a limitation prohibiting exercise of the warrants if the shares issued would cause the
holder to own more than 20% of the outstanding stock.  The holder of 2,136,164 of the $2.25 Warrants currently
would be disallowed from exercising those warrants under this provision.  If all of the remaining 1,463,836 warrants
are exercised for cash, the Company would receive $3,293,631in aggregate proceeds.  The $2.25 Warrants became
exercisable in November 2011.  The Company does not expect the immediate exercise of these warrants as the
exercise price exceeds the average closing market  price for the Company's common stock. Furthermore, no
assurances can be made that any of the warrants will ever be exercised for cash or at all.
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NOTE 13 - STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY AND EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued)

Stock Issued for Services

During 2011, the Company issued a total of 75,000 shares of its common stock as compensation for services by
consultants.  Non-cash expense of $172,500 was recognized in 2011 over the respective service periods.  The
valuation of the stock was based on the closing market price for the Company's common stock on the effective dates
of the issuances.

Stock Options

In January 2011, the Company issued options to purchase a total of 1,602,500 shares of its common stock at option
prices ranging from $4.80 to $6.38 per share.  Of that total, 1,265,000 were issued to employees, 250,000 were issued
to a consultant and 87,500 were issued to the Company's directors.  During 2011, unvested options to purchase
325,000 shares were forfeited by an employee and a consultant whose relationship with the company ended. Also
vested options to purchase 225,000 shares expired unused during 2011.  In October 2011, the Company's board of
directors offered to purchase all options held by current employees at $0.10 per option share.  All employees accepted
the offer, resulting in a total payment by the Company of $96,500.  The Company subsequently cancelled the options
purchased. At December 31, 2011, options to purchase 87,500 shares of stock at $4.80 per share remained
outstanding, all of which are exercisable and held by members of the Company's board of directors.

Stock option activity summary is presented in the table below:

Weighted-
average

Weighted- Remaining
average Contractual Aggregate

Number of Exercise Term Intrinsic
Shares Price (years) Value

Outstanding at December 31, 2010 (Predecessor) - $- - $-
Granted 1,602,500 5.21
Cancelled (965,000 ) 5.23
Exercised - -
Forfeited (325,000 ) 5.33
Expired (225,000 ) 4.80
Outstanding and exercisable at December 31, 2011 87,500 $4.80 4.08 $-

There is no intrinsic value in the outstanding options since the option price is in excess of the market price of the
Company's common stock.

The fair value of the options granted during 2011 was estimated at the date of grant using the Black-Scholes
option-pricing model with the following assumptions:

Closing market price of stock on grant date $3.11
Risk-free interest rate 2.43%
Dividend yield 0.00%
Volatility factor 50%
Expected life 2.5 years

Edgar Filing: CROSS BORDER RESOURCES, INC. - Form 424B3

58



F-23

Edgar Filing: CROSS BORDER RESOURCES, INC. - Form 424B3

59



NOTE 13 - STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY AND EARNINGS PER SHARE  (continued)

Earnings Per Share

The following table illustrates the calculation of earnings per share for the years ended December 31:

2011
(As

Restated)
2010

(Predecessor)
Net income (loss) $(861,330 ) $ 282,989
Weighted-average number of common shares 14,945,782 n/a
Earnings per common share:
     Basic $(0.06 ) n/a
     Diluted $(0.06 ) n/a

In periods where a net loss is incurred, any assumed exercise of stock options or warrants would be anti-dilutive. The
exercise prices of all outstanding stock options and warrants exceeded the market price for the Company's common
stock throughout the periods shown. Therefore there would have been no dilutive impact from these items if there
were net income for the periods.  Prior to the merger, effective January 3, 2011, the accounting acquirer was a
privately held partnership. No earnings per share can be calculated for those periods.

NOTE 14 - DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS AND PRICE RISK MANAGEMENT ACTIVITIES

ASC 815-25 (formerly SFAS No. 133 “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities”) requires that all
derivative instruments be recorded on the balance sheet at their fair value. Changes in the fair value of each derivative
is recorded each period in current earnings or other comprehensive income, depending on whether the derivative is
designated as part of a hedge transaction and, if it is, the type of hedge transaction. When choosing to designate a
derivative as a hedge, management formally documents the hedging relationship and its risk-management objective
and strategy for undertaking the hedge, the hedging instrument, the item, the nature of the risk being hedged, how the
hedging instrument’s effectiveness in offsetting the hedged risk will be assessed, and a description of the method of
measuring effectiveness. This process includes linking all derivatives that are designated as cash-flow hedges to
specific cash flows associated with assets and liabilities on the balance sheet or to specific forecasted transactions.
Based on the above, management has determined the swaps noted above do not qualify for hedge accounting
treatment.

At December 31, 2011, we had a net derivative liability of $84,994, with no comparable item at the prior year
end.  Therefore, the total net derivative liability of $84,994 represents the change in fair value and is reflected in
"other income (expense)" on the Statement of Operations. Net realized hedge settlement gains totaled $73,223 during
2011.

As of December 31, 2011, we have crude oil swaps in place relating to a total of 3,000 Bbls per month, as follows:

Transaction Price

Fair Value of Outstanding
Derivative Contracts (1)

(in thousands)
as of December 31,

Date
Type
(2) Beginning Ending

Per
Unit

Volumes Per
Month 2011

2010
(Predecessor)

March 2011 Swap 04/01/2011 02/28/2011 $104.55 1,000 $ 83,594 $ -
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November
2011 Swap 12/01/2011 11/30/2014   $93.50 2,000 (168,588) -

Total fair value of derivative contracts $ (84,994) $ -

(1) The fair value of the Company's outstanding transactions is presented on the balance sheet by counterparty.
Currently all of our derivatives are with the same counterparty. The balance is shown as current or long-term based on
our estimate of the amounts that will be due in the relevant time periods at currently predicted price levels. Amounts
in parentheses indicate liabilities.

(2) These crude oil hedges were entered into on a per barrel delivered price basis, using the NYMEX - West Texas
Intermediate Index, with settlement for each calendar month occurring following the expiration date, as determined by
the contracts.

 An additional crude oil swap was put in place in February 2012 covering 1,000 Bbls of oil per month at a price of
$106.50 per Bbl for a period beginning March 1, 2012 and ending February 28, 2014.
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NOTE 15 – FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Cross Border Resources, Inc. commodity derivatives are measured at fair value in the financial statements. The
Company’s financial assets and liabilities are measured using input from three levels of the fair value hierarchy. A
financial asset or liability classification within the hierarchy is determined based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement. The three levels are as follows:  

Level 1 –Inputs are unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
that Cross Border Resources, Inc. has the ability to access at the measurement date.

Level 2 –Inputs include quoted prices for similar assets and liabilities in active markets, quoted
prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not active, inputs
other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability and inputs that are
derived principally from or corroborated by observable market data by correlation or
other means (market corroborated inputs).

Level 3 –Unobservable inputs reflect Cross Border Resources, Inc’s judgments about the
assumptions market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability since
limited market data exists. The Company develops these inputs based on the best
information available, using internal and external data.

The following table presents the Company’s assets and liabilities recognized in the balance sheet and measured at fair
value on a recurring basis as of December 31, 2011:

Input Levels for Fair Value Measurements
Description Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Current liabilities:
Commodity derivatives, current portion $ —$ 56,908 $ —$ 56,908
Other liabilities:
Commodity derivatives, long-term 28,086 28,086

$ —$ 84,994 $ —$ 84,994

The fair value of derivative liabilities is determined using forward price curves derived from market price quotations,
externally developed and commercial models, with internal and external fundamental data inputs. Market price
quotations are obtained from independent energy brokers and direct communication with market participants.

NOTE 16 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Redemption of Pure Debentures:  On January 31, 2012, the Company called for payment prior to maturity all of the
debentures originally issued by Pure L.P. pursuant to the provisions of the Trust Indenture dated as of March 1, 2005
(the “Pure Debentures”).  The redemption of the Pure Debentures was conditional upon the anticipated increase in the
line of credit issued by TCB, and upon such increase, the redemption of 100% of the Pure Debentures was completed
on March 1, 2012.

Hedges:  See the disclosure in Note 12 regarding the entry into additional hedges in February 2012.
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NOTE 17 - SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION ON OIL AND GAS PRODUCING ACTIVITIES (UNAUDITED)

There are numerous uncertainties inherent in estimating quantities of proved crude oil and natural gas reserves. Crude
oil and natural gas reserve engineering is a subjective process of estimating underground accumulations of crude oil
and natural gas that cannot be precisely measured. The accuracy of any reserve estimate is a function of the quality of
available data and of engineering and geological interpretation and judgment.

The Company retained an independent reserve engineer to perform an evaluation of proved reserves as of December
31, 2011 and 2010. Results of drilling, testing and production subsequent to the date of the estimates may justify
revision of such estimates. Accordingly, reserve estimates are often different from the quantities of crude oil and
natural gas that are ultimately recovered. All of the Company’s reserves are located in the United States.

In accordance with U.S. GAAP for disclosures regarding oil and gas producing activities, and SEC rules for oil and
gas reporting disclosures, we are making the following disclosures regarding our natural gas and oil reserves and
exploration and production activities. The standardized measure of discounted future net cash flows is computed by
applying fiscal year-end prices of oil and gas to the estimated future production of proved oil and gas reserves, less
estimated future expenditures (based on fiscal year-end cost estimates assuming continuation of existing economic
conditions) to be incurred in developing and producing the proved reserves, less estimated future income tax expenses
(based on fiscal year-end statutory tax rates) to be incurred on pre-tax net cash flows less tax basis of the properties
and available credits, and assuming continuation of existing economic conditions. The estimated future net cash flows
are then discounted using a rate of 10 percent per year to reflect the estimated timing of the future cash flows.

Capitalized Costs Relating to Oil and Gas Producing Activities as of December 31, 2011 and 2010:

2011
(As

Restated)
2010

(Predecessor)
Proved properties
Mineral interests $613,816 $ 613,816
Wells, equipment and facilities 31,568,040 17,799,727
Total proved properties 32,181,856 18,413,543

Unproved properties
Mineral interests $1,008,078 $ 1,008,078
Uncompleted wells, equipment and facilities 1,796,632 -
Total unproved properties 2,804,710 1,008,078

Less: Accumulated depreciation, depletion and amortization (9,667,031 ) (7,328,326 )
Net capitalized costs $25,319,535 $ 12,093,295

Costs Incurred in Oil and Gas Producing Activities for the Years Ended December 31, 2011 and 2010:

2011
2010

(Predecessor)
Acquisition of proved properties, non-cash $10,336,219 $ -
Development costs, cash 2,008,935 1,303,337
Exploration costs, cash 1,971,535 276,592
Total costs incurred $14,316,689 $ 1,579,929
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NOTE 17 - SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION ON OIL AND GAS PRODUCING ACTIVITIES (UNAUDITED)
(continued)

Results of Operations for Oil and Gas Producing Activities for the Year Ended December 31, 2011 and 2010:

2011
(As

Restated)
2010

(Predecessor)
Revenues $7,313,149 $ 3,808,879
Production costs 2,000,677 830,144
Exploration expenses & abandonment 49,234 -
Depreciation, depletion and amortization 2,105,851 1,199,365
Accretion expense 84,428 59,269
Income (loss) before income tax 2,905,170 1,720,101
Income tax - -
Results of operations from oil and gas producing activities $2,905,170 $ 1,720,101

Proved Reserves:

The Company’s proved oil and natural gas reserves have been estimated by independent petroleum engineers. Proved
reserves are the estimated quantities that geologic and engineering data demonstrate with reasonable certainty to be
recoverable in future years from known reservoirs under existing economic and operating conditions. Proved
developed reserves are the quantities expected to be recovered through existing wells with existing equipment and
operating methods. Due to the inherent uncertainties and the limited nature of reservoir data, such estimates are
subject to change as additional information becomes available. The reserves actually recovered and the timing of
production of these reserves may be substantially different from the original estimate. Revisions result primarily from
new information obtained from development drilling and production history; acquisitions of oil and natural gas
properties; and changes in economic factors. All proved reserves are located in the United States. Proved reserves as
of December 31, 2011 and 2010 are summarized in the table below.

Oil Gas
Proved Natural Gas and Oil Reserves at December 31, 2010 (Predecessor): (mBbls) (mmcf)
Proved reserves - beginning of period 344 2,109
Revisions of previous estimates 48 (81 )
Proved reserves - beginning of period, as revised 392 2,028
Extensions and discoveries 482 578
Purchase of minerals in place (Pure Merger) 885 -
Production (51 ) (221 )
Proved reserves, at December 31, 2011 1,708 2,385
   Proved developed reserves, at December 31, 2011 528 1,592

Standardized Measure of Discounted Future Net Cash Flows at December 31, 2011 and 2010:

(in thousands) 2011
2010

(Predecessor)
Future cash inflows $163,140 $ 37,393
Future production costs (30,511 ) (10,417 )
Future development costs (25,968 ) (4,491 )
Future income taxes - -
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10% annual discount for estimated timing of cash flows (61,800 ) (12,653 )
Standardized measure of discounted future net cash flows: $44,862 $ 9,832
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NOTE 17 - SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION ON OIL AND GAS PRODUCING ACTIVITIES (UNAUDITED)
(continued)

Future cash inflows are computed by applying year-end commodity prices, adjusted for location and quality
differentials on a property-by-property basis, to year-end quantities of proved reserves, except in those instances
where fixed and determinable price changes are provided by contractual arrangements at year-end.

In our 2011 year-end reserve report, we used the average price of oil and natural gas at the first of the month for the
preceding twelve months period which is $87.91 per barrel of oil and $5.61 per mcf.

Future production and development costs, which include dismantlement and restoration expense, are computed by
estimating the expenditures to be incurred in developing and producing the Company’s proved crude oil and natural
gas reserves at the end of the year, based on the year-end costs, and assuming continuation of existing economic
conditions. While the Company believes that future operating costs can be reasonably estimated, future prices are
difficult to estimate since market prices are influenced by events beyond its control. Future global economic and
political events will most likely result in significant fluctuations in future oil prices, while future U.S. natural gas
prices will continue to be influenced by primarily domestic market factors, including supply and demand, weather
patterns and public policy.

Future income tax expenses are generally computed by applying the appropriate year-end statutory tax rates to the
estimated future pretax net cash flows relating to the Company’s proved crude oil and natural gas reserves, less the tax
basis of the properties involved. The future income tax expenses give effect to tax credits and allowances, but do not
reflect the impact of general and administrative costs and exploration expenses of ongoing operations relating to the
Company’s proved crude oil and natural gas reserves.  In light of the Company's net operating loss carryforwards, no
income tax expense has been deducted.

Changes in Standardized Measure of Discounted Future Net Cash Flows for the Year Ended December 31, 2011:

(in thousands) 2011
Beginning of year $9,832
Purchase of minerals in place (Pure Merger) 6,509
Extensions and discoveries 13,115
Revisions to previous estimates 20,767
Sales of oil and gas produced, net of production costs (4,378 )
Net change in income taxes -
Accretion of discount (983 )
End of year $44,862
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

None.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

(a)  Evaluation of disclosure controls and procedures

Our management, with the participation of our Interim President and Chief Accounting Officer, evaluated the
effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures pursuant to Rule 13a-15 under the Exchange Act. In designing
and evaluating the disclosure controls and procedures, management recognizes that any controls and procedures, no
matter how well designed and operated, can provide only reasonable assurance of achieving the desired control
objectives. In addition, the design of disclosure controls and procedures must reflect the fact that there are resource
constraints and that management is required to apply its judgment in evaluating the benefits of possible controls and
procedures relative to their costs.

Based on management’s evaluation, our Interim President and Chief Accounting  Officer concluded that, as a result of
the material weaknesses below and because of the restatement, as of December 31, 2011, our disclosure controls and
procedures are not designed at a reasonable assurance level and are ineffective to provide reasonable assurance that
information we are required to disclose in reports that we file or submit under the Exchange Act is recorded,
processed, summarized, and reported within the time periods specified in SEC rules and forms, and that such
information is accumulated and communicated to our management, including our Interim President and Chief
Accounting Officer, as appropriate, to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.  The material weaknesses,
which relate to internal control over financial reporting, that were identified are:

1) We did not properly apply business combination accounting to our acquisition of Doral and as a result we
inappropriately recorded goodwill and an intangible asset as part of that transaction which should have been
applied to the acquired oil & gas assets.  As a result, we determined that our consolidated financial statements for
the year ended December 31, 2011 filed in the annual report on Form 10-K and our consolidated financial
statements as of and for the three month period ended March 31, 2012 filed in the quarterly report on Form 10-Q
should not be relied upon and needed to be restated.;

2) We did not properly accrue operating costs or capital expenditures due to inadequate policies and procedures for
activity that occurred during the fourth quarter of 2011.  As a result, we determined that our consolidated financial
statements for the year ended December 31, 2011 filed in the annual report on Form 10-K and our consolidated
financial statements as of and for the three month period ended March 31, 2012 filed in the quarterly report on
Form 10-Q should not be relied upon and needed to be restated.

We are committed to improving our accounting organization. In the future, should we contemplate a business
combination, we will consult with legal counsel and appropriate accounting resources to evaluate the financial
statement impact that the transaction may have.  Additional measures may be implemented as we evaluate the
effectiveness of these efforts.  We cannot assure you that these remediation efforts will be successful or that our
internal control over financial reporting will be effective in accomplishing the control objectives.

(b)  Management's report on internal control over financial reporting.

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting, as
defined in Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(f). Management conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of our internal
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control over financial reporting based on the framework in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Based on this evaluation, management
concluded that our internal control over financial reporting was not effective as of December 31, 2011, because of
material weaknesses relating to the application of business combination accounting and failing to properly accrue
operating costs or capital expenditures.  These material weakness resulted in a material misstatement of our assets and
liabilities and related financial disclosures that was not prevented or detected on a timely basis.  The material
weakness described above resulted in a restatement of the Company’s consolidated financial statements for the year
ended December 31, 2011 on Form 10-K/A and for the interim period ended March 31, 2012 on Form 10-Q/A as
discussed in Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K/A.

Changes in internal control over financial reporting

There were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting during our most recent fiscal quarter that
materially affected, or were reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.
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ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

All information required to be disclosed in a report on Form 8-K during the fourth quarter, ended December 31, 2011,
has been previously reported by us on Form 8-K.

PART IV

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES.

Exhibit 
Number Description of Exhibits

2.1 Agreement and Plan of Merger entered into on December 2, 2010 among Doral Energy
Corp., Doral Acquisition Corp., Pure Gas Partners II, L.P. and Pure Energy Group, Inc.
(14)

2.2 Agreement and Plan of Merger entered into on December 24, 2010 between Doral
Acquisition Corp. (as subsidiary merging entity) and Doral Energy Corp. (as parent
surviving entity) with the surviving entity changing its name to Cross Border Resources,
Inc. (16)

3.1 Articles of Incorporation. (1)
3.2 Certificate of Change Pursuant to NRS 78.209 increasing the authorized capital of

common stock to 2,500,000,000 shares, par value $0.001 per share (25-for-1 Stock Split).
(3).

3.3 Articles of Merger between Language Enterprises Corp. (as surviving entity) and Doral
Energy Corp. (as merging entity). (4)

3.4 Certificate of Change Pursuant to NRS 78.209 decreasing the authorized capital of
common stock to 400,000,000 shares, par value $0.001 per share (1-for-6.25 Reverse
Split). (5)

3.5 Certificate of Change Pursuant to NRS 78.209 increasing the authorized capital of
common stock to 2,000,000,000 shares, par value $0.001 per share (5-for-1 Stock Split).
(6)

3.6 Certificate of Change Pursuant to NRS 78.209 decreasing the authorized capital of
common stock to 36,363,637 shares, par value $0.001 per share (1-for-55 Stock Split).
(15)

3.7 Certificate of Merger between Doral Acquisition Corp. (as merging entity) and Doral
Energy Corp. (as surviving entity). (16)

3.8 Articles of Merger between Doral Acquisition Corp. (as merging entity) and Doral
Energy Corp. (as surviving entity). (16)

3.9 Amended and Restated Bylaws as amended by Amendments No. 1 and No. 2. (26)
4.1 Trust Indenture of Pure Energy Group, Inc. and Pure Gas Partners II, L.P. assumed by the

Company. (16)
4.2 Form of Common Stock Warrant. (23)
10.1 Loan and Cancellation of Convertible Note Agreement between Doral Energy Corp. and

Edward Ajootian dated March 3, 2010. (7)
10.2 Debt Settlement Agreement with War Chest Multi-Strategy Fund, LLC dated March 8,

2010. (7)
10.3 Amendment Agreement dated March 12, 2010 to Debt Settlement Agreement with War

Chest Multi- Strategy Fund, LLC. (7)
10.4 Release and Settlement Agreement between Doral Energy Corp. and Macquarie Bank

Limited dated March 8, 2010. (7)
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10.5 Purchase and Sale Agreement dated April 30, 2010 between Doral Energy Corp. and
Alamo Resources LLC. (8)

10.6 Purchase and Sale Agreement dated June 14, 2010 between Doral Energy Corp., John R.
Stearns and John R. Stearns Jr. (9)

10.7 Amended and Restated 2009 Stock Incentive Plan. (10)
10.8 Debt Settlement Agreement dated September 16, 2010 between the Company and War

Chest Multi- Strategy Fund, LLC. (11)
10.9 Debt Settlement Agreement dated September 16, 2010 between the Company and Barclay

Lyons, LLC. (11)
10.10 Separation Agreement dated June 15, 2010 between Doral Energy Corp. and H. Patrick

Seale. (12)
10.11 Debt Settlement Agreement dated November 24, 2010 between the Company and WS Oil

& Gas Limited. (13)
10.12 Amended and Restated Credit Agreement between Cross Border Resources, Inc. and

Texas Capital Bank, N.A. dated January 31, 2011. (18)
10.13 Employment Agreement with Everett Willard “Will” Gray II. (19)
10.14 Nonqualified Stock Option Award Agreement with Everett Willard “Will” Gray II. (19)
10.15 Employment Agreement with Lawrence J. Risley. (19)
10.16 Nonqualified Stock Option Award Agreement with Lawrence J. Risley. (19)
10.17 Employment Agreement with P. Mark Stark.(19)
10.18 Nonqualified Stock Option Award Agreement with P. Mark Stark.(19)
10.19 Consulting Agreement with BDR, Inc. (19)
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Exhibit 
Number Description of Exhibits

10.20 Nonqualified Stock Option Award Agreement with BDR, Inc. (19)
10.21 Loan Agreement by and between Green Shoe Investments Ltd. and the Company. (20)
10.22 Promissory Note to Green Shoe Investments Ltd. (20)
10.23 Loan Agreement by and between Little Bay Consulting SA and the Company. (20)
10.24 Promissory Note to Little Bay Consulting SA. (20)
10.25 Separation Agreement and Release with BDR, Inc.  (22)
10.26 Consent Waiver and First Amendment to Amended and Restated Credit Agreement with Texas

Capital Bank, N.A.  (25)
10.27 First Amendment to Employment Agreement with Everett Willard "Will" Gray II  (25)
10.28 First Amendment to Employment Agreement with Lawrence J. Risley  (25)
10.29 Letter Agreement with Nancy S. Stephenson  (25)
10.30 Letter Agreement with American Standard Energy Corp. (21)
14.1 Code of Business Conduct and Ethics (26)
21.1 List of Subsidiaries. (23)
23.1 Consent of Darilek, Butler & Associates PLLC. (*)
23.2 Consent of Joe C. Neal & Associates, Inc. (26)
24.1 Power of Attorney (included in signature block to this Annual Report on Form 10-K).
31.1 Certification of Principal Executive Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of

2002. (*)
31.2 Certification of Principal Accounting Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of

2002. (*)
32.1 Certification of Principal Executive Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted

pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. (*)
32.2 Certification of Principal Accounting Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted

pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. (*)
99.1 Evaluation of Oil and Gas Reserves of Cross Border Resources, Inc., Effective Date: January 1,

2012. (26)
 101.INS XBRL Instance Document*
 101.SCH XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document
 101.CAL XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document
 101.DEF XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document
 101.LAB XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document
 101.PRE XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document

99.2 Evaluation of Oil and Gas Reserves of Pure Energy Group, Inc., Effective Date: December 31,
2010. (26)

 (1) Filed as an exhibit to our Registration Statement on Form SB-2 filed on September 11, 2006.
 (2) Filed as an exhibit to our Annual Report on Form 10-KSB for the year ended July 31, 2007 filed

on October 30, 2007.
 (3) Filed as an exhibit to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed on January 9, 2008.
 (4) Filed as an exhibit to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed on April 28, 2008.
(5) Filed as an exhibit to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed on January 29, 2009.
(6) Filed as an exhibit to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed on September 14, 2009.
(7) Filed as an exhibit to our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed on March 22, 2010.
(8) Filed as an exhibit to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed on May 6, 2010.
 (9) Filed as an exhibit to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed on June 18, 2010.
 (10) Filed as an exhibit to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed on July 30, 2010.
 (11) Filed as an exhibit to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed on October 1, 2010.
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(12) Filed as an exhibit to our Annual Report on Form 10-K filed on November 15, 2010.
(13) Filed as an exhibit to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed on December 1, 2010.
 (14) Filed as an exhibit to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed on December 6, 2010.
 (15) Filed as an exhibit to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed on December 29, 2010.
 (16) Filed as an exhibit to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed on January 7, 2011.
 (17) Filed as an exhibit to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed on January 19, 2011.
 (18) Filed as an exhibit to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed on February 8, 2011.
 (19) Filed as an exhibit to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed on March 25, 2011.
 (20) Filed as an exhibit to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed on April 28, 2011.
 (21) Filed as an exhibit to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed on November 23, 2011.
 (22) Filed as an exhibit to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed on June 3, 2011.
 (23) Filed as an exhibit to our Registration Statement on Form S-1/A on August 2, 2011.
 (24) Filed as an exhibit to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed on November 16, 2011.
 (25) Filed as an exhibit to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed on March 6, 2012.
 (26) Filed as an exhibit to our Annual Report on Form 10-K filed on March 15, 2012.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly
caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

CROSS BORDER RESOURCES, INC.

Date:  August 31, 2012 By:/s/ Earl Sebring
Earl Sebring
Interim President (Principal Executive Officer)

Date: August 31, 2012 By:/s/ Kenneth S. Lamb
Kenneth S. Lamb
Chief Accounting Officer

POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that the undersigned officers and directors of Cross Border Resources,
Inc., a Nevada corporation (the “Corporation”), hereby constitute and appoint Everett Willard Gray, II, the true and
lawful agent and attorney-in-fact of the undersigned with full power and authority in said agent and attorney-in-fact,
to sign for the undersigned and in his name as an officer or director of the Corporation, any and all amendments to this
Annual Report on Form 10-K and to file the same, with all exhibits thereto and other documents in connection
therewith, with the Securities and Exchange Commission, and with full power of substitution; hereby ratifying and
confirming all that said attorney-in-fact, or his substitute or substitutes, may do or cause to be done by virtue hereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act, this Registration Statement has been signed by the following
persons in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Name Title Date

/s/ Earl Sebring Interim President (Principal Executive
Officer)

August 31, 2012

/s/ Kenneth S. Lamb Chief Accounting Officer August 31, 2012

/s/Alan Barksdale Director, Chairman of the Board August 31, 2012

/s/ Richard F. LaRoche Jr. Director August 31, 2012

 /s/ John Hawkins Director August 31, 2012

  /s/ Paul Vasilakos Director August 31, 2012
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UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-Q/A
(Amendment No. 1)

(Mark One)

x QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(D) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF
1934

For the quarterly period ended March 31, 2012

o TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(D) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF
1934

For the transition period from ________to ________

COMMISSION FILE NUMBER 000-52738

CROSS BORDER RESOURCES, INC.
(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

NEVADA 98-0555508
(State or other jurisdiction of incorporation or

organization)
(I.R.S. Employer Identification No.)

22610 US Highway 281 N., Suite 218
San Antonio, TX 78258

(Address of principal executive offices) (Zip Code)

(210) 226-6700
(Registrant’s telephone number, including area code)

(Former name, former address and former fiscal year, if changed since last report)

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was

required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days.
o Yes x No

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate Web site, if
any, every Interactive Data File required to be submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T

(§232.405 of this chapter) during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required
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to submit and post such files).
x Yes o No

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer,
or a smaller reporting company. See the definitions of “large accelerated filer,” “accelerated filer” and “smaller reporting

company” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.

Large accelerated filer o Accelerated filer o
Non-accelerated filer o (Do not check if a smaller

reporting company)
Smaller reporting company x

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act).
o Yes x No

Indicate the number of shares outstanding of each of the issuer’s classes of common stock, as of the latest practicable
date:

As of August 30, 2012, the Registrant had 16,151,946 shares of common stock outstanding.
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EXPLANATORY NOTE

On May 11, 2012, we filed our  Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended March 31, 2012 (the “2012 10-Q”)
with the SEC.  By this Amendment No. 1, we are amending the 2012 10-Q to include corrections to computational
errors in our accounting for business combinations, the under accrual of capital expenditures and operating costs for
activities that occurred during the first quarter of 2012, and the omission of footnote disclosure for our oil and natural
gas properties in our financial statements. Other correcting adjustments with regards to depletion are being made in
this restatement.We have also revised the disclosure in Item 4 to reflect the material weaknesses in disclosure controls
and procedures from the filing of our 2012 10-Q.

No other changes have been made to the 2012 10-Q. This Amendment No. 1 to the 2012 10-Q speaks as of the
original filing date of the 2012 10-Q, does not reflect events that may have occurred subsequent to the original filing
date, and does not modify or update in any way disclosures made in the 2012 10-Q except as set forth above.
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PART I - FINANCIAL INFORMATION

ITEM 1.     FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The accompanying unaudited financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the instructions to Form
10-Q and Article 8-03 of Regulation S-X, and, therefore, do not include all information and footnotes necessary for a
complete presentation of financial position, results of operations, cash flows, and stockholders' equity in conformity
with generally accepted accounting principles. In the opinion of management, all adjustments considered necessary
for a fair presentation of the results of operations and financial position have been included and all such adjustments
are of a normal recurring nature. Operating results for the three-month period ended March 31, 2012 are not
necessarily indicative of the results that can be expected for the year ending December 31, 2012.

As used in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q/A, the terms "we,” "us,” "our,” and the “Company” mean Cross Border
Resources, Inc. unless otherwise indicated.  All dollar amounts in this Quarterly Report are in U.S. dollars unless
otherwise stated.
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Cross Border Resources, Inc.
Balance Sheets

March 31, December 31,
2012 2011

(Unaudited)
(As Restated) (As Restated)

ASSETS

Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 70,412 $ 472,967
Accounts receivable - production 2,905,931 1,184,544
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 1,061,393 1,808,944
Current tax asset 21,737 21,737
   Total Current Assets 4,059,473 3,488,192
 Property and Equipment
   Oil and gas properties (successful efforts method) 41,703,972 34,986,566
Less accumulated depletion and depreciation (10,144,137) (9,667,031)
   Net Property and Equipment 31,559,835 25,319,535

Other Assets:
   Other property and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation of $134,408 and  $
126,473 in 2012 and 2011, respectively 88,053 95,988
   Deferred bond costs, net of accumulated amortization of $503,854 and $344,300 in
2012 and 2011, respectively - 159,554
   Deferred bond discount, net of accumulated amortization of $186,560 and $127,483
in 2012 and 2011, respectively - 59,077
   Deferred financing costs, net of accumulated amortization of $39,739 and $26,355
in 2012 and 2011, respectively 174,887 64,746
   Other 54,324 54,324
      Total Other Assets 317,264 433,689

TOTAL ASSETS $ 35,936,572 $ 29,241,416

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

1
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March 31, December 31,
2012 2011

(Unaudited)
(As Restated) (As Restated)

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable - trade $ 3,239,032 $ 1,177,383
Accounts payable - revenue distribution 236,915 143,215
Interest payable 63,173 112,659
Accrued expenses 614,093 484,595
Deferred revenues - 32,479
Notes payable - current 764,278 764,278
Bonds payable – current portion - 570,000
Creditors payable – current portion 300,000 186,761
Derivative liability – current portion 248,816              56,908
   Total Current Liabilities 5,466,307 3,528,278

Non-Current Liabilities:
Asset retirement obligations 1,191,149 1,186,260
Deferred income tax liability 21,737 21,737
Line of credit 9,300,000 2,381,000
Derivative liability, net of current portion 258,675 28,086
Bonds payable, net of current portion - 2,825,000
Creditors payable, net of current portion 1,052,783 1,352,783
   Total Non-Current Liabilities 11,824,344 7,794,866

TOTAL LIABILITIES 17,290,651 11,323,144

Commitments and Contingencies (see note 11)

STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Common stock , $0.001 par value, 36,363,637 shares authorized, 16,151,946
shares issued and outstanding at March 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011 16,152 16,152
Additional paid-in capital 32,617,690 32,617,690
Retained earnings (accumulated deficit) (13,987,921) (14,715,570)
TOTAL STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY 18,645,921 17,918,272

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY $ 35,936,572 $ 29,241,416

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

2
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Cross Border Resources, Inc.
Statements of Operations

For the three months ended March 31, 2012 and 2011
 (Unaudited)

2012 2011

REVENUES AND GAINS:
     (As
Restated)

Oil and gas sales $ 3,573,746 $ 1,566,813
Other 32,479 32,479
Total Revenues And Gains $ 3,606,225 $ 1,599,292

OPERATING EXPENSES:
   Operating costs 736,383 153,063
   Production taxes 160,371 105,456
   Depreciation, depletion, and amortization 544,117 584,290
   Accretion expense 4,889 26,416
   General and administrative 671,070 873,146
Total Operating Expenses 2, 116,830 1,742,371

GAIN (LOSS) FROM OPERATIONS 1,489,395 (143,079) 

OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE):
   Bond issuance amortization (159,553) (4,664) 
   Gain (loss) on derivatives (473,913) 30,266
   Interest expense (131,758) (105,156)
   Miscellaneous other income (expense) 3,478 42,019
Total Other Income (Expense) (761,746) (37,535)

GAIN (LOSS) BEFORE INCOME TAXES 727,649 (180,614)

Current tax benefit (expense) (247,816) 30,868
Deferred tax benefit (expense) 247,816 (5,170) 
   Income tax benefit (expense) - 25,698

NET INCOME (LOSS) $ 727,649 $ (154,916)

NET GAIN (LOSS) PER SHARE:
Basic and diluted $ 0.05 $ (0.01) 
WEIGHTED AVERAGE SHARES OUTSTANDING:
Basic and diluted 16,151,946 12,476,945

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Cross Border Resources, Inc.
Statements of Cash Flows

For the Three Months Ended March 31, 2012 and 2011
 (Unaudited)

Three Months Ended
March 31,

2012 2011

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
 (As
Restated)

Net income (loss) $ 727,649 $ (154,916)
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation, depletion, amortization 544,117 571,694
Accretion 4,889 26,416
Share-based compensation - 30,492
Amortization of debt discount and deferred financing costs 218,631 17,260
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable (1,721,387) (104,914)
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 698,382 3,492,054
Accounts payable 1,070,073 (321,381)
Derivative asset/liability 422,497 -
Accrued expenses 195,570 (201,175)
Deferred income tax - (25,698) 
Deferred revenue (32,479) (32,479)
NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 2,127,942 3,297,353

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Cash impact of merger, net - (62,797)
Capital expenditures - oil and gas properties (5,867,736) (4,285,954)
Capital expenditures - other assets - (45,146 )
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES (5,867,736) (4,393,897)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Net borrowings (payments) on line of credit 6,919,000 1,212,500
Proceeds from renewing notes - 128,037
Repayments of bonds (3,395,000) (190,000)
Repayments to creditors (186,762) (266,760)
NET CASH PROVIDED BY FINANCING ACTIVITIES 3,337,238 883,777

NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (402,555) (212,767) 
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period 472,967 975,123
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period $ 70,412 $ 762,356

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION:
Interest paid $ 101,154 $ 174,341
Income taxes paid $ - $ -

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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 Cross Border Resources, Inc.
Notes to Unaudited Financial Statements

NOTE 1 – ORGANIZATION AND BUSINESS OPERATIONS

Nature of Operations

The Company is an independent natural gas and oil company engaged in the exploration, development, exploitation,
and acquisition of natural gas and oil reserves in North America.  The Company’s primary area of focus is the State of
New Mexico, particularly southeastern New Mexico.

Reverse Acquisition

Effective December 27, 2010, the Company completed a 1-for-55 reverse split of its common stock in accordance
with Article 78.207 of the Nevada Revised Statutes (the “Reverse Split”).  The Reverse Split resulted in a decrease in
the Company’s authorized share capital from 2,000,000,000 shares of common stock, par value $0.001 per share, to
36,363,637 shares of common stock, par value, $0.001 per share, with a corresponding decrease in the number of
issued and outstanding shares of the Company’s common stock from 135,933,086 shares to 2,471,544 shares (after
accounting for fractional share interests being rounded up to the next whole number).  Completion of the Reverse Split
was a condition precedent for the merger with Pure Gas Partners II, L.P. (“Pure”).

Effective January 3, 2011, the Company completed the acquisition of Pure Energy Group, Inc. (“Pure Sub”) as
contemplated pursuant to the Agreement and Plan of Merger dated December 2, 2010 (the “Pure Merger Agreement”)
among the Company, Doral Acquisition Corp., the Company’s wholly owned subsidiary (“Doral Sub”), Pure and Pure
Sub, a wholly owned subsidiary of Pure (Pure Sub and Pure being collectively referred to herein as the “Pure Energy
Group” or the "Predecessor").

Pursuant to the provisions of the Pure Merger Agreement, all of Pure’s oil and gas assets and liabilities were
transferred to Pure Sub. Pure Sub was then merged with and into Doral Sub, with Doral Sub continuing as the
surviving corporation (the “Pure Merger”). Upon completion of the Pure Merger, the outstanding shares of Pure Sub
were converted into an aggregate of 9,981,536 shares of the Company’s common stock. As a result of the Pure Merger,
the previous Pure shareholders owned approximately 80% of the Company’s total outstanding shares on a fully diluted
basis, with the Company’s previous stockholders owning the remaining 20%, immediately following the merger.

The purchase price of the assets of the Company arising from the reverse acquisition with the Pure Energy Group was
$8,085,984, representing eighty percent (80%) of the appraised value of 2,471,511 post-split shares of the Company
which were issued and outstanding immediately prior to the reverse acquisition. The allocation of the purchase price
and the purchase price accounting is based upon estimates of the assets and liabilities effectively acquired on January
3, 2011 in accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") Accounting Standards Codification
("ASC") 805, Business Combinations.

5
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NOTE 1 – ORGANIZATION AND BUSINESS OPERATIONS (continued)

The allocation of the purchase price is as follows:
(As Restated)

Cash and cash equivalents $ (62,798) 
Accounts receivable 94,810
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 5,769
Proved oil and gas properties 10,336,219
Property and equipment 12,643
Other assets 228,268
Total assets 10,614,911
Accounts payable (378,079)
Accounts payable- related party (69,917)
Accrued liabilities (182,110)
Long-term debt (1,018,322)
Notes payable to related party (250,000)
Asset retirement obligation (630,499)
Purchase price $ 8,085,984

The statements of income include the results of operations for Cross Border Resources, Inc. commencing on January
4, 2011. As a result, information provided for the three months ended March 31, 2011 presented below includes the
actual results of operations from January 4, 2011 to March 31, 2011 and the combined historical financial information
for the Cross Border Resources, Inc. (formerly Doral Energy) and Pure for the period January 1, 2011 to January 3,
2011. The unaudited pro forma financial information for the three months ended March 31, 2011 presented below
combines the historical financial information for the Cross Border Resources, Inc. and Pure for that period. The
following unaudited pro forma information is not necessarily indicative of the results of future operations:

Three
Months Ended

March 31,
2011

Revenues $ 1,599,292
Operating income (loss) (154,309 )
Net income (loss) (167,832 )

Earnings (loss) per share $ (0.01 )

Basis for Presentation

The unaudited condensed balance sheet as of December 31, 2011 and the unaudited condensed statements of
operations and cash flows for the three months ended March 31, 2011 include the accounts of the Predecessor for the
period of January 1, 2011 to January 3, 2011 and the accounts of Doral and the Company for the period January 4,
2011 (date of reverse acquisition as discussed below) to March 31, 2011 (collectively, “Cross Border Resources, Inc.” or
the “Company”). The comparative balance sheet as of March 31, 2012 and the unaudited condensed statements of
operations and cash flows for the three month period ended March 31, 2012 represent the accounts of the
Company.  The business combination has been accounted for as a reverse acquisition wherein Pure is treated as the
acquirer for accounting purposes.
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In the opinion of management, all adjustments (consisting of normal recurring adjustments) considered necessary for a
fair presentation have been included. Certain reclassifications have been made to the prior period to conform to
current presentation.

6

Edgar Filing: CROSS BORDER RESOURCES, INC. - Form 424B3

89



NOTE 1 – ORGANIZATION AND BUSINESS OPERATIONS (continued)

 Interim financial statements

The unaudited financial information furnished herein reflects all adjustments, which in the opinion of management are
necessary to fairly state the Company’s financial position and the results of its operations for the periods
presented.  This report on Form 10-Q/A should be read in conjunction with the Company’s financial statements and
notes thereto included in the its Annual Report on Form 10-K/A for the year ended December 31, 2011, filed with the
SEC on August 31, 2012. The Company assumes that the users of the interim financial information herein have read
or have access to the audited financial statements for the preceding fiscal year and that the adequacy of additional
disclosure needed for a fair presentation may be determined in that context. Accordingly, footnote disclosure, which
would substantially duplicate the disclosure contained in its audited financial statements for the fiscal period ended
December 31, 2011, may have been omitted. The results of operations for the three month period ended March 31,
2012 are not necessarily indicative of results for the entire year ending December 31, 2012.

NOTE 2 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Oil and Gas Properties

The Company uses the successful efforts method of accounting for oil and gas producing activities.  Costs to acquire
mineral interests in oil and gas properties, to drill and equip exploratory wells that find proved reserves, to drill and
equip development wells and related asset retirement costs are capitalized.  Costs to drill exploratory wells that do not
find proved reserves, geological and geophysical costs, and costs of carrying and retaining unproved properties are
expensed.

Unproved oil and gas properties that are individually significant are periodically assessed for impairment of value, and
a loss is recognized at the time of impairment by providing an impairment allowance.  Capitalized costs of producing
oil and gas properties, after considering estimated residual salvage values, are depreciated and depleted by the
unit-of-production method.

On the sale or retirement of a complete unit of a proved property, the cost, and related accumulated depreciation,
depletion, and amortization are eliminated from the property accounts, and the resultant gain or loss is recognized.  On
the retirement or sale of a partial unit of proved property, the cost is charged to accumulated depreciation, depletion,
and amortization with a resulting gain or loss recognized in income.

On the sale of an entire interest in an unproved property for cash or cash equivalent, gain or loss on the sale is
recognized, taking into consideration the amount of any recorded impairment if the property had been assessed
individually.  If a partial interest in an unproved property is sold, the amount received is treated as a reduction of the
cost of the interest retained.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less to be cash
equivalents.

Accounts Receivable - Production

Accounts receivable consist of amounts due from customers for oil and gas sales and are considered fully collectible
by the Company as of March 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011.  The Company determines when receivables are past
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due based on how recently payments have been received.

Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes oil and natural gas revenue from its interests in producing wells when oil and natural gas is
produced and sold from those wells.
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NOTE 2 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment is stated at cost.  Depreciation is computed on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful
lives ranging from three to ten years.

Asset Retirement Obligations

The Company accounts for asset retirement obligations under the provisions of ASC 410, Asset Retirement and
Environmental Obligations, which provides for an asset and liability approach to accounting for Asset Retirement
Obligations (ARO).  Under this method, when legal obligations for dismantlement and abandonment costs, excluding
salvage values, are incurred, a liability is recorded at fair value and the carrying amount of the related oil and gas
properties is increased.  Accretion of liability is recognized each period using the interest method of allocation and the
capitalized cost is depleted over the useful life of the related asset. Asset retirement obligations as of March 31, 2012
and December 31, 2011 were $1,191,149 and $1,186,260, respectively.

The following is a description of the changes to the Company’s asset retirement obligations for the year-to-date periods
ended March 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011: 

2012 2011
Asset retirement obligations at beginning of year $1,186,260 $508,588
Asset retirement obligations acquired in acquisition - 630,499
Revision of previous estimates - (158,452 )
Accretion expense 4,889 84,428
Additions - 121,197
Asset retirement obligations at end of period $1,191,149 $1,186,260

Income Taxes

The Company is a taxable entity for federal or state income tax purposes for which an income tax provision has been
made in the accompanying financial statements.  Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are computed annually for
differences between the financial statement and tax bases of assets and liabilities that will result in taxable or
deductible amounts in the future based on enacted tax laws and rates applicable to the periods in which the differences
are expected to affect taxable income.  Valuation allowances are established when necessary to reduce deferred tax
assets to the amount expected to be realized.  Income tax expense is the tax payable or refundable for the period plus
or minus the change during the period in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Differences between the enacted tax rates
and the effective tax rates are primarily the result of timing differences in the recognition of depletion and accretion
expenses. These differences do not create a material variance between the enacted tax rate and the effective tax rate.
However, net tax expense has been reduced as the result of changes to the valuation allowance.

Three Months
Ended March 31,

2012 2011
Amount computed at expected statutory rate (33.86% for 2012; 15% for 2011) $247,816 $(23,237 )

Net income tax expense (benefit) $- $(25,698 )
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Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues,
expenses and related disclosures.  Actual results could differ from those estimates and assumptions.  Significant
estimates include volumes of oil and gas reserves used in calculating depletion of proved oil and natural gas properties
and costs to abandon oil and gas properties.
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NOTE 2 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Management believes that it is reasonably possible the following material estimates affecting the financial statements
could significantly change in the coming year: (1) estimates of proved oil and gas reserves, and (2) forecast forward
price curves for natural gas and crude oil. The oil and gas industry in the United States has historically experienced
substantial commodity price volatility, and such volatility is expected to continue in the future. Commodity prices
affect the level of reserves that are considered commercially recoverable; significantly influence the Company’s
current and future expected cash flows; and impact the PV10 derivation of proved reserves.

Financial Instruments

The Company’s financial instruments include cash and cash equivalents, receivables, payables, and debt and are
accounted for under the provisions of ASC Topic 825, Financial Instruments.  The carrying amount of these financial
instruments as reflected in the balance sheets, except for long-term, fixed-rate debt, approximates fair value.  The
Company estimates the fair value of its long-term, fixed-rate debt generally using discounted cash flow analysis based
on the Company's current borrowing rates for similar types of debt.

Comprehensive Income

The Company does not have any components of "other comprehensive income."  Therefore Total Comprehensive
Income (Loss) is not reported on the Statements of Operations.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

From time to time, new accounting pronouncements are issued by FASB that are adopted by the Company as of the
specified effective date.  If not discussed, management believes that the impact of recently issued standards, which are
not yet effective, will not have a material impact on the Company's financial statements upon adoption.

NOTE 3 - RESTATEMENT

On August  27, 2012, the Company filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) a Current Report on
Form 8-K, to report management’s determination that the Company’s consolidated financial statements for the period
ended March 31, 2012, included in its Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed with the SEC on May 11, 2012 (the “2012
Form 10-Q”), should not be relied upon due to an error in such consolidated financial statements with respect
misapplication of the technical requirements of generally accepted accounting principles related to business
combination accounting and valuation of acquired oil and gas assets in connection with its business combination with
Pure Energy Group, Inc. In addition, the Company did not properly accrue liabilities for capital expenditures and
operating costs associated with activity that occurred during the first quarter of 2012. Other correcting adjustments
with regards to depletion are being made in this restatement.

This amended Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q/A for the period ended March 31, 2012 incorporates corrections made
in response to the accounting errors described above by restating the Company’s consolidated financial statements
presented herein for the period ended March 31, 2012.  The corrections to the quarterly information in this amended
Form 10-Q/A had no impact on the Company’s previously reported operations from oil and gas activities or cash flows
for the periods being restated.

The Company determined that the business combination accounting presented in the 2011 Form 10-K incorrectly
allocated a portion of the purchase price to goodwill and a portion of the purchase price to an intangible asset.  See
Note 1 for the updated purchase price allocation.  Additionally, the 2012 Form 10-Q lacked the required footnote for
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oil and gas properties.  See Note 4 – Property and Equipment.

The following tables show the effects of the restatement on the Company's consolidated balance sheet as of March 31,
2012 and consolidated statements of operations and cash flows for the period ended March 31, 2012:
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NOTE 3 – RESTATEMENT (continued)

Cross Border Resources, Inc.
Balance Sheet

As of March 31, 2012
As

Previously
Reported As Restated

Oil and natural gas properties, successful efforts method $36,288,899 $41,703,972

Accumulated depletion and depreciation (10,415,884) (10,144,137)

Intangible asset, net of accumulated amortization of $247,020 1,729,137 —

Goodwill 1,395,807 —

Accounts payable - trade 1,081,770 3,239,032

Retained earnings (accumulated deficit) (14,392,535) (13,987,921)

Cross Border Resources, Inc.
Statement of Operations

For the period ended March 31, 2012
As

Previously
Reported As Restated

Depreciation, depletion, and amortization $661,469 $544,117

Operating costs 688,535 736,383

Net income 658,145 727,649

Net gain per share – basic and diluted 0.04 0.05

Cross Border Resources, Inc.
Statement of Cash Flows

For the period ended March 31, 2012
As

Previously
Reported As Restated

Net income $658,145 $727,649

Depreciation, depletion, and amortization 661,469 544,117

Accounts payable 1,022,225 1,070,073

Net cash provided by operating activities 2,127,942 2,127,942
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NOTE 4 – PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

The following table sets forth the capitalized costs under the successful efforts method for oil and natural gas
properties:

Oil and natural gas properties

March 31, 2012
(As Restated)

December 31,
2011

Oil and natural gas properties $ 41,703,972 $ 34,986,566
Less accumulated depletion (10,144,137) (9,667,031)
Net oil and natural gas properties capitalized costs $ 31,559,835 $ 25,319,535

At March 31, 2012 and 2011, the Company excluded $7,908,916 and $6,484,519 of costs, respectively, from the
depletion calculation.

At March 31, 2012, the capitalized costs of the Company’s oil and natural gas properties included $10,336,219 relating
to acquisition costs of proved properties which are being amortized by the unit-of-production method using total
proved reserves and $23,458,837 relating to exploratory well costs and additional development costs which are being
amortized by the unit-of-production method using proved developed reserves.

During the period ended March 31, 2012, the Company incurred approximately $3,033,437 in exploratory drilling
costs, of which no amount was charged to earnings.

Capitalized costs related to proved oil and natural gas properties, including wells and related equipment and facilities,
are evaluated for impairment based on the Company’s analysis of undiscounted future net cash flows. If undiscounted
future net cash flows are insufficient to recover the net capitalized costs related to proved properties, then the
Company recognizes an impairment charge in income equal to the difference between carrying value and the
estimated fair value of the properties. Estimated fair values are determined using discounted cash flow models. The
discounted cash flow models include management’s estimates of future oil and natural gas production, operating and
development costs, and discount rates. The Company recorded no impairment charges on its proved properties for the
period ended March 31, 2012. Impairment expense would be included in abandonment and impairment expense in the
accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations.

Uncertainties affect the recoverability of these costs as the recovery of the costs outlined above are dependent upon
the Company obtaining and maintaining leases and achieving commercial production or sale.

Other property and equipment

The historical cost of other property and equipment, presented on a gross basis with accumulated depreciation and
amortization is summarized as follows:

March 31,
2012

December
31, 2011

Other property and equipment $222,461 $222,461
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization 134,408 126,473
Net other property and equipment $88,053 $95,988

NOTE 5– STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY AND EARNINGS PER SHARE
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2011 Equity Financing

On May 26, 2011, the Company closed a private offering exempt from registration under the Securities Act of 1933
pursuant to Rule 506 of Regulation D promulgated thereunder.  In the offering, the Company issued an aggregate of
3,600,000 units.  Each unit was sold at $1.50 and was comprised of one share of common stock and one five-year
warrant to purchase a share of common stock at an exercise price of $2.25 per share.   The warrants became
exercisable on November 26, 2011.  The Company agreed to use the net proceeds from the sale of the units for general
business and working capital purposes and not to use such proceeds for the redemption of any common stock or
common stock equivalents.

11
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NOTE 5– STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY AND EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued)

The investors in the offering received registration rights.  The Company agreed to file a registration statement
covering the resale of the common stock issued and the common stock underlying the warrants issued to the Selling
Stockholders within sixty days after the closing date.  The registration statement was declared effective on August 5,
2011. If at the time of exercise of the warrants there is no effective registration statement covering the resale of the
shares underlying the warrant, then the  investors in the offering have the right at such time to exercise warrants in full
or in part on a cashless basis.

In addition to registration rights, the investors in the offering were offered a right of first refusal to participate in future
offerings of common stock if the principal purpose of which is to raise capital.  This right of first refusal terminates
upon the earlier of a sale, merger, consolidation or reorganization of the Company or May 26, 2012, the one-year
anniversary of the closing date of the offering.

Warrants

In connection with the equity offering closed on May 26, 2011, the Company issued warrants to purchase an
aggregate of 3,600,000 shares of the Company’s common stock at a per-share price of $2.25.  The Company also has
outstanding warrants to purchase 3,125 shares of the Company’s common stock at a per-share price of $5.00.

If all of these warrants are exercised for cash, the Company would receive $8,115,625 in aggregate proceeds.  The
warrants to purchase the 3,600,000 shares became exercisable in November 2011.  The Company does not expect the
immediate exercise of these warrants as the exercise price exceeds the average closing price. Furthermore, no
assurances can be made that any of the warrants will ever be exercised for cash or at all.

Stock Options

In January 2011, the Company issued options to purchase a total of 1,602,500 shares of its common stock at option
prices ranging from $4.80 to $6.38 per share.  Of that total, 1,265,000 were issued to employees, 250,000 were issued
to a consultant and 87,500 were issued to the Company's directors.  During 2011, unvested options to purchase
325,000 shares were forfeited by an employee and a consultant whose relationship with the company ended and
vested options to purchase 225,000 shares expired unused.  During October 2011, the Company's board of directors
offered to buy back all options held by current employees at $0.10 per option share.  All employees accepted the offer,
resulting in a total payment by the Company of $96,500.

At March 31, 2012, options to purchase 87,500 shares of stock at $4.80 per share remain outstanding, all of which are
held by members of the Company's Board of Directors.

Earnings Per Share

The following table illustrates the calculation of earnings per share for the three month periods ended March 31:

Three Month Periods
2012
(As

Restated) 2011
Net income (loss) $727,649 $(154,916 )
Weighted-average number of common shares 16,151,946 12,476,945
Earnings per common share:
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     Basic $0.05 $(0.01 )
     Diluted $0.05 $(0.01 )

The exercise prices of all outstanding stock options and warrants, and the conversion price on convertible debt,
exceeded the market price for the Company's common stock throughout the periods shown. Therefore there would
have been no dilutive impact from these items for the periods.  In periods where a net loss is incurred, any assumed
exercise of stock options or warrants would be anti-dilutive.
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NOTE 6– RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Company paid $58,000 in consulting fees in the three month period ended March 31, 2011, to BDR Consulting,
Inc. (BDR), a member of CCJ/BDR Investments, L.L.C., who owned a combined 64.108% limited partnership interest
in the Pure Gas Partners II, L.P.  The president of BDR also served on the Board of Directors and was the Chief
Executive Officer of Pure Energy Group, Inc. BDR's services have not been used since the termination agreement in
June 2011.

NOTE 7 – LONG TERM - DEBT

At March 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011, long-term debt consisted of the following items, excluding the operating
line of credit:

March 31, December 31,
2012 2011

7½% Debentures, Series 2005 $ - $ 3,395,000
Notes Payable – Greenshoe Investment 367,309 367,309
Notes Payable – Little Bay Consulting 396,969 396,969
Total Long-term Debt $ 764,278 $ 4,159,278

7½% Debentures, Series 2005

On March 1, 2005, Pure Energy Group, Inc. and its subsidiary Pure Gas Partners, II, L.P., issued 7 ½ % Debentures,
Series 2005, in the principal amount of $5,500,000 (the "Pure Debentures".  The Pure Debentures were secured by all
revenues of the issuer and all money held in the funds and accounts created under the Indenture.  The Pure Debentures
would have matured on March 1, 2015, if not redeemed, with principal and interest payable semi-annually on March 1
and September 1.  As of March 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011, the balance payable was $0 and
$3,395,000,  respectively.  Interest expense related to the Pure Debentures for the three months ended March 31, 2012
and 2011 was $43,708 and $79,942, respectively.

As permitted by the bond debt agreement, the Company purchased bonds back on the open market at its
discretion.  Pure Debentures held by the Company at March 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011 totaled $0 and
$100,000, respectively. These Pure Debentures were purchased at a discount of $16,719 during 2011.  The Pure
Debentures held by the Company are shown as a reduction of bonds payable on the balance sheet as follows:

March 31, December 31,
2012 2011

Bonds Payable $ - $ 3,395,000
Less: Bonds held by the Company - (100,000)
Total $ - $ 3,295,000

Redemption of Pure Debentures:  On January 31, 2012, the Company called for payment prior to maturity all of the
Pure Debentures.  The redemption of 100% of the Pure Debentures was completed on March 1, 2012.
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NOTE 7 – LONG TERM - DEBT (continued)

Notes Payable Green Shoe Investments

In connection with the merger, the Company, as the accounting acquirer, assumed an unsecured loan from Green Shoe
Investments Ltd. (“Green Shoe”) in the principal amount of $487,000 at an interest rate of 5.0%

On April 26, 2011, the Company entered into a Loan Agreement with Green Shoe, and the Company executed and
delivered a Promissory Note to Green Shoe in connection therewith.  The amount of the Promissory Note and the loan
from Green Shoe (the “Green Shoe Loan”) is $550,936 and the purpose of the Green Shoe Loan is to consolidate and
extend all of the loans owed by the Company and its predecessors to Green Shoe including without limitation the
following:  (i) loan dated May 9, 2008 in the principal amount of $100,000, (ii) loan dated May 23, 2008 in the
principal amount of $150,000, (iii) loan dated July 18, 2008 in the principal amount of $50,000, (iv) loan dated
February 24, 2009 in the principal amount of $100,000, and (v) loan dated April 29, 2009 in the principal amount of
$87,000 plus accrued interest of $63,936.  The Green Shoe Loan is unsecured.

Beginning March 31, 2011 (the effective date of the Promissory Note), the amounts owed under the Promissory Note
began to accrue interest at a rate of 9.99%, and the Promissory Note provides that no payments of principal or interest
are due until the maturity date of September 30, 2012.  The Company is obligated to pay all accrued interest and make
a principal payment equal to one-third of the principal owed upon the closing of an equity offering resulting in a
specified amount of net proceeds to the Company.  In addition, Green Shoe was granted the right to convert the
principal and interest owed into shares of common stock of the Company at a conversion price of $4.00 per share. The
principal balance of these amounts as of March 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011 was $367,309, which is shown in
Current Liabilities on the Balance Sheet.

Notes Payable Little Bay Consulting

In connection with the merger, the Company, as the accounting acquirer, assumed an unsecured loan from Little Bay
Consulting SA (“Little Bay”) in the principal amount of $520,000 at an interest rate of 5%.

On April 26, 2011, the Company entered into a Loan Agreement with Little Bay, and the Company executed and
delivered a Promissory Note to Little Bay in connection therewith.  The amount of the Promissory Note and the loan
from Little Bay (the “Little Bay Loan”) is $595,423 and the purpose of the Little Bay Loan is to consolidate and extend
all of the loans owed by the Company and its predecessors to Little Bay including without limitation the following: (i)
loan dated March 7, 2008 in the original principal amount of $220,000, (ii) loan dated July 18, 2008 in the original
principal amount of $100,000, and (iii) loan dated October 3, 2008 in the principal amount of $200,000 plus accrued
interest of $75,423.  The Little Bay Loan is unsecured.

Beginning March 31, 2011 (the effective date of the Promissory Note), the amounts owed under the Promissory Note
began to accrue interest at a rate of 9.99%, and the Promissory Note provides that no payments of principal or interest
are due until the maturity date of September 30, 2012.  The Company is obligated to pay all accrued interest and make
a principal payment equal to one-third of the principal owed upon the closing of an equity offering resulting in a
specified amount of net proceeds to the Company.  In addition, Little Bay was granted the right to convert the
principal and interest owed into shares of common stock of the Company at a conversion price of $4.00 per share. The
principal balance of these borrowings as of March 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011 was $396,969, which is shown in
Current Liabilities on the Balance Sheet.

NOTE 8 – OPERATING LINE OF CREDIT
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As of December 31, 2011, the borrowing base on the line of credit was $4,500,000.  Effective March 1, 2012, the
borrowing base was increased to $9,500,000. The interest rate was calculated at the greater of the adjusted base rate or
4% . The line of credit is collateralized by producing wells and matures on January 14, 2014.  As of March 31, 2012
and December 31, 2011, the outstanding balance on the line of credit was $9,300,000 and $2,381,000,
respectively.  Interest expense for the three months ended March 31, 2012 and 2011 was $55,630 and $25,215,
respectively.  The line of credit is reported as long-term debt because the maturity date is greater than one year.
During April 2012, the Company drew down a total of $200,000 on this facility, leaving no unused balance.

As of March 31, 2012 the Company was not in compliance with its debt covenants; however the Company obtained a
waiver letter from the lending institution of its covenant violation.  
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NOTE 9 – CREDITORS PAYABLE

In 2002, the prior owner of Pure Sub filed a petition for reorganization with the United States Bankruptcy
Court.  According to the plan of reorganization, three creditors were to receive a combined amount of approximately
$3,000,000 for their claims out of future net revenues of Pure Sub (defined as revenues from producing wells net of
lease operating expenses and other direct costs).  

The net estimated revenue distribution due to creditors in 2013 based on expected 2012 net revenues is $300,000,
which is presented as a current liability.  The related distribution based on 2011 net revenues was $186,761 as of
December 31, 2011, which had been reduced for an over payment in the prior year and was paid in February
2012.   As of March 31, 2012 and March 31, 2011, the combined creditors’ payable balances were $1,352,783 and
$1,539,545, respectively.

NOTE 10 – OPERATING LEASES

The Company has a non-cancelable operating lease for office space expiring in June 2014.  As of December 31, 2011,
the remaining future minimum lease payments under the existing lease are as follows:

Year Ending December 31,
Operating

Lease
2012 $ 50,000
2013 51,250
2014 26,250
2015 -
2016 -

Total Minimum Lease Payments $ 127,500

Rent expense related to leases for the three month periods ended March 31, 2012 and 2011 was $13,720 and $11,875,
respectively.

NOTE 11 – COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The Company is subject to federal and state laws and regulations relating to the protection of the environment. 
Environmental risk is inherent to oil and natural gas operations and the Company could be subject to environmental
cleanup and enforcement actions.  The Company manages this environmental risk through appropriate environmental
policies and practices to minimize the impact to the Company.

From time to time, the Company is a party to various legal proceedings arising in the ordinary course of business.  The
Company is not currently a party to any proceeding that it believes could have a material adverse effect on the
Company’s financial condition, results of operation or cash flows.

The changes resulting from the Settlement Agreement signed on April 23, 2012 (see Note 13) triggered the change in
control provisions under existing agreements with employees.  A total of approximately $1.0 million is payable to
employees in four installments over the remainder of 2012.  The costs will be reflected in general  and administrative
expenses in the Statement of Operations in the period they were triggered (May 2012). Approximately 50% will be
paid in the second quarter of 2012 and 25% each in the third and fourth quarters of 2012.  Details of the payment
calculation were disclosed in the Company's Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2011, filed with the SEC on
March 15, 2012.
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NOTE 12 – CONCENTRATIONS OF CREDIT RISK

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to the concentration of credit risk consist primarily of cash
and cash equivalents. Cash balances did not exceed FDIC normal insurance protection levels at March 31, 2012 and
2011. However, Section 343 of the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act (“DFA”) provides
temporary unlimited deposit insurance coverage for noninterest-bearing transaction accounts at all FDIC-insured
depository institutions.

The Company also maintains cash balances with two investment brokerage firms that are protected by the Securities
Investor Protection Corporation (SIPC) up to $250,000.  In addition to the SIPC coverage, one of the investment
brokerage firms provides supplemental coverage in excess of SIPC through an insurance policy that covers cash
balances up to $500,000.  The cash balance at the other investment brokerage firm is held in a FDIC-Insured Deposit
Account and is also protected by a supplemental coverage insurance policy that covers cash balances up to
$124,500,000.  As of March 31, 2012 and 2011, the Company’s cash balance with these investment brokerage firms
did not exceed the combined coverage.

NOTE 13 – DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS AND PRICE RISK MANAGEMENT ACTIVITIES

 ASC 815-25 (formerly SFAS No. 133 “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities”) requires that
all derivative instruments be recorded on the balance sheet at their fair value. Changes in the fair value of each
derivative are recorded each period in current earnings or other comprehensive income, depending on whether the
derivative is designated as part of a hedge transaction and, if it is, the type of hedge transaction. When choosing to
designate a derivative as a hedge, management formally documents the hedging relationship and its risk-management
objective and strategy for undertaking the hedge, the hedging instrument, the item, the nature of the risk being hedged,
how the hedging instrument’s effectiveness in offsetting the hedged risk will be assessed, and a description of the
method of measuring effectiveness. This process includes linking all derivatives that are designated as cash-flow
hedges to specific cash flows associated with assets and liabilities on the balance sheet or to specific forecasted
transactions. Based on the above, management has determined the swaps noted below do not qualify for hedge
accounting treatment.

At March 31, 2012, we had a net derivative liability of $507,491, up from $84,994 at the prior year end.  The change
in net derivative liability of $422,497 is expensed as non-cash mark-to-market expense. Net realized hedge settlement
losses for the three months ended March 31, 2012 and 2011 totaled $51,416, and $0, respectively. The combination of
these two components of derivative expense/income is reflected in "Other Income (Expense)" on the Statements of
Operations as "Gain (loss) on derivatives."

As of March 31, 2012, we have crude oil swaps in place relating to a total of 4,000 Bbls per month, as follows:

Price Volumes

Fair Value of Outstanding
Derivative Contracts (1)

(in thousands)
as of

Transaction Per Per March 31,
December

31,

Date
Type
(2) Beginning Ending Unit Month 2012 2011

March
2011 Swap 04/01/2011 02/28/2013 $ 104.55 1,000 $ (1,487 ) $ 83,594

Swap 12/01/2011 11/30/2014 $ 93.50 2,000 (568,244 ) (168,588 )
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November
2011
February
2012 Swap 03/01/2012 02/28/2014 $ 106.50 1,000 62,240

$ (507,491 ) $ (84,994 )

(1) The fair value of the Company's outstanding transactions is presented on the balance sheet by
counterparty. Currently all of our derivatives are with the same counterparty. The balance is shown
as current or long-term based on our estimate of the amounts that will be due in the relevant time
periods at currently predicted price levels. Amounts in parentheses indicate liabilities.

(2) These crude oil hedges were entered into on a per barrel delivered price basis, using the
NYMEX - West Texas Intermediate Index, with settlement for each calendar month occurring
following the expiration date, as determined by the contracts.
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NOTE 14 – FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Cross Border Resources, Inc. commodity derivatives are measured at fair value in the financial statements. The
Company’s financial assets and liabilities are measured using input from three levels of the fair value hierarchy. A
financial asset or liability classification within the hierarchy is determined based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement. The three levels are as follows:  

Level 1 –Inputs are unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
that Cross Border Resources, Inc. has the ability to access at the measurement date.

Level 2 –Inputs include quoted prices for similar assets and liabilities in active markets, quoted
prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not active, inputs
other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability and inputs that are
derived principally from or corroborated by observable market data by correlation or
other means (market corroborated inputs).

Level 3 –Unobservable inputs reflect Cross Border Resources, Inc’s judgments about the
assumptions market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability since
limited market data exists. The Company develops these inputs based on the best
information available, using internal and external data.

The following table presents the Company’s assets and liabilities recognized in the balance sheet and measured at fair
value on a recurring basis as of  March 31, 2012:

Input Levels for Fair Value Measurements
Description Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Current Assets / (Liabilities):
Commodity derivatives, current portion $ —$ (248,816) $ —$ (248,816) 
Other Assets / (Liabilities):
Commodity derivatives, long-term (258,675) (258,675)

$ —$ (507,491) $ —$ (507,491)

The fair value of derivative assets is determined using forward price curves derived from market price quotations,
externally developed models, with internal and external fundamental data inputs. Market price quotations are obtained
from independent energy brokers and direct communication with market participants.

NOTE 15 – SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On April 23, 2012, the Company entered into an agreement (“Settlement Agreement”) with Red Mountain Resources,
Inc. (“Red Mountain”). Pursuant to the Settlement Agreement and effective on May 8, 2012, Red Mountain's lawsuit
against the Company and the Company's directors filed with the District Court for Clark County, Nevada (the “Action”)
was dismissed with prejudice. Additionally and also effective on May 8, 2012, Everett Willard Gray, II, Lawrence J.
Risley and Brad E. Heidelberg resigned from the Board of Directors of the Company (with Richard F. LaRoche, Jr.
and John W. Hawkins remaining as members of the Board) and Alan W. Barksdale, Randell K. Ford and Paul N.
Vassilakos, each a member of Red Mountain’s board of directors, were appointed as directors of the Company to fill
the vacancies. Messrs. Ford, Vassilakos, LaRoche and Hawkins are expected to be independent directors.
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NOTE 15 – SUBSEQUENT EVENTS  (continued)

The Settlement Agreement contains the following terms in order to provide certain protections to the stockholders of
the Company:
•   The newly-constituted Board of the Company will not cause a merger, sale, or exchange of assets between the
Company and Red Mountain prior to December 31, 2012. This period may be reduced at any time if approved by a
majority of the Company’s independent directors or two-thirds of its stockholders, and deemed appropriate for the
Company’s stockholders via an independent fairness opinion that the transaction is fair to unaffiliated stockholders of
the Company.
•   Everett Willard Gray II, Chairman and CEO, and Larry Risley, President and Chief Operating Officer, will resign
as officers of the Company with such resignations to be effective on May 31, 2012. It is anticipated that the
newly-constituted Board will appoint a new Chief Executive Officer simultaneous with the effectiveness of these
resignations. However, the parties have agreed that the new executives will receive no more compensation than the
former executives would have received in aggregate over the period ending December 31, 2012.
•   To avoid potential conflicts of interest, the newly-constituted Board will not appoint any person who currently
serves as an officer or director of Red Mountain or its affiliates to serve as an executive officer of the Company.
•   The newly-constituted Board will cause the Company to hold an annual meeting for the election of directors as
soon as practicable but no later than September 30, 2012.

The Company’s stockholders have been named as third party beneficiaries of the Settlement Agreement so that they
may cause the newly-constituted Board to comply with these terms.
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ITEM 2.      MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS
OF OPERATIONS

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Certain statements contained in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q/A constitute “forward-looking statements.” These
statements, identified by words such as “plan,” “anticipate,” “believe,” “estimate,” “should,” “expect” and similar expressions
include our expectations and objectives regarding our future financial position, operating results and business strategy.
These statements reflect the current views of management with respect to future events and are subject to risks,
uncertainties and other factors that may cause our actual results, performance or achievements, or industry results, to
be materially different from those described in the forward-looking statements. Such risks and uncertainties include
those set forth under the caption “Part II – Item 1A. Risk Factors” and elsewhere in this Quarterly Report. We do not
intend to update the forward-looking information to reflect actual results or changes in the factors affecting such
forward-looking information. We advise you to carefully review the reports and documents, particularly our Annual
Reports, our Quarterly Reports and our Current Reports we file from time to time with the United States Securities
and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”). Copies of all of our filings with the SEC may be accessed by visiting the SEC
site (http://www.sec.gov) and performing a search of our electronic filings.

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

General  Overview

Cross Border Resources, Inc. is an oil and gas exploration company resulting from the business combination of Doral
Energy Corp. and Pure Gas Partners II, L.P. ("Pure L.P."), effective January 3, 2011. We own over 868,000 gross
(approximately 295,000 net) mineral and lease acres in New Mexico and Texas.  Approximately 26,000 of these net
acres exist within the Permian Basin. A significant majority of our acreage consists of either owned mineral rights or
leases held by production, allowing us to hold lease rental payments to under $5,000 annually. The remainder of our
acreage interests consists of operated and non-operated working interests.

Current development of our acreage is focused on our prospective Bone Spring acreage located in the heart of the 1st
and 2nd Bone Spring play. This play encompasses approximately 4,390 square miles across both New Mexico and
Texas.  We currently own varying, non-operated working interests in both Eddy and Lea Counties, New Mexico,
along with our working interest partners that include Cimarex, Apache, and Mewbourne, all having significant
footprints within this play.

Successful 2nd Bone Spring completions during 2011 and continuing into the first quarter of 2012 have been
instrumental in increasing our net daily production from 271 barrels of oil equivalent per day (“boepd”) at January 3,
2011 to a net daily production rate of approximately 675 boepd for March 2012.

Additional development is currently underway on our Abo, Yeso, and Wolfberry acreage with our other working
interest partners, Concho Resources, Big Star and Oxy.  We currently have a drilling inventory across these
formations with varying non-operated working interests ranging from 1.05% to 20%.

During the first three months of 2012, we participated in seven gross (1 net) new wells.  As of April 30, 2012, three of
the seven new wells had been placed on production, while four are awaiting completion.  Additionally, three of the
four wells that began during 2011 and were awaiting completion at year end 2011 were successfully completed during
the first quarter of 2012.  No new leasehold acquisitions were made during first quarter 2012.
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SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT

On April 23, 2012, the Company entered into an agreement (“Settlement Agreement”) with Red Mountain Resources,
Inc. (“Red Mountain”) to settle litigation filed by Red Mountain against the Company as further described in Item 1 of
Part II of this report. Pursuant to the Settlement Agreement and effective on May 8, 2012, the litigation was dismissed
and Everett Willard Gray, II, Lawrence J. Risley and Brad E. Heidelberg resigned from the Board of Directors of the
Company (with Richard F. LaRoche, Jr. and John W. Hawkins remaining as members of the Board) and Alan W.
Barksdale, Randell K. Ford and Paul N. Vassilakos, each a member of Red Mountain’s board of directors, were
appointed as directors of the Company to fill the vacancies.  Messrs. Ford, Vassilakos, LaRoche and Hawkins are
expected to be independent directors.

The Settlement Agreement also contains certain terms in order to provide certain protections to the stockholders of the
Company.  See Note 13 "Subsequent Events" for a listing of these terms.  For more information on the Settlement
Agreement, please see the Information Statement (Schedule 14F-1) filed by the Company with the SEC on April 27,
2012.

STRATEGIC ALTERNATIVES

In February 2012, we announced that our Board of Directors had decided to engage in a broad review of strategic
alternatives aimed at maximizing shareholder value.  The purpose of the strategic review was to evaluate the
Company's current long-term business plan against a range of alternatives that have the potential to maximize
shareholder value including strategic financing opportunities, asset divestitures, joint ventures and/or a corporate sale,
merger or other business combination.  The Company engaged KeyBanc Capital Markets as its financial advisor to
assist the Company with its evaluation of strategic opportunities.  The strategic review process was not initiated as a
result of any particular offer.  Activity under this review has been delayed until the new Board is seated as a result of
the Settlement Agreement.

RESULTS OF OPERATION

Summary of Production

The following summarizes our net production sold for the three month periods ended March 31:
2012 2011 % Change

Oil (Bbls) 32,415 13,287 144 %
Gas (mcf) 54,370 50,911 7 %
  Total barrels of oil equivalent (boe)* 41,477 21,772 91 %
Average barrels of oil equivalent per day (“boepd”) 456 242 88 %
* Oil and natural gas were combined by converting natural gas to oil equivalent on the basis of 6 mcf of gas = 1 boe.

This increase in oil and gas sales volumes is due primarily to increased production from wells added period over
period. The 2012 Quarter had one additional production day when comparing to the 2011 Quarter. During the month
of March 2012, production averaged 675 boepd primarily due to the Cimarex SE Lusk 2H and 3H wells coming on
production.

Set forth in the following schedule is the average sales price per unit and average cost of production produced by us
for the three month periods ended March 31:

Three Months Periods
2012 2011 % Change

Average sales price:
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  Oil ($ per bbl) $98.46 $89.19 10 %
  Gas ($ per mcf) $5.86 $6.22 (6 )%
Average cost of production:
  Average production cost ($/boe) $15.62 $7.25 115 %
  Average production taxes ($/boe) $3.86 $5.45 (29 )%
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Three months ended March 31, 2012 and 2011

Summary of  First Quarter Results
Three Months Ended March

31
Percentage
Increase /

2012
(As

Restated) 2011 (Decrease)
Revenue and Gains $ 3,606,225 $ 1,599,292 125%
Operating Expenses (2,116,830) (1,742,371) 21%
Other Income (Expense) (761,746) (37,535) 1,929%
Income Tax (Expense) Benefit - 25,698 n/m
Net Income (Loss) $ 727,649 $ (154,916) n/m
  n/m - When moving from income to expense, or from expense to income, the percentage change is not meaningful.

Revenues

We recognized $3.6 million in revenues from sales of oil and natural gas for the three months ended March 31, 2012
(the “2012 Quarter”), compared to $1.6 million for the three months ended March 31, 2011 (the “2011 Quarter”.)  This
125% increase in oil and gas sales revenue is due primarily to increased production from wells added period over
period.  Sales volumes on a boe basis were up approximately 91% for the 2012 Quarter over the 2011 Quarter.  In
addition, average prices for crude oil sold period over period increased by 10%.  We report our revenues on wells in
which we have a working interest based on information received from operators.  The recognition of revenues in this
manner is in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

We also recognized deferred revenue of $32,479 during both the 2011 and 2012 Quarters. The deferred revenues have
now been fully recognized and, therefore, will not be continued in future periods.

Operating Expenses

Our operating expenses for the 2012 Quarter and 2011 Quarter consisted of the following:

Three Months Ended March
31,

Percentage
Increase /

2012
(Restated) 2011 (Decrease)

Operating Costs $ 736,383 $ 153,063 381%
Production Taxes 160,371 105,456 52%
Depreciation, Depletion, and Amortization 544,117 584,290 (7)%
Accretion Expense 4,889 26,416 (81)%
General and Administrative 671,070 873,146 (23)%
   Total $ 2,116,830 $ 1,742,371 21%

Operating costs were higher as a result of costs related to additional wells brought on line year over year. Production
taxes were higher as a result of higher production on wells recently placed on production. General and administrative
expense ("G&A") decreased primarily as a result of lower costs for professional services and no stock compensation
expense during the 2012 Quarter.  This decrease is somewhat offset by the inclusion of a $65,000 accrual for
employee bonuses during the 2012 Quarter, while during 2011 no employee bonuses were accrued until the fourth
quarter of the year. 
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G&A as a percentage of "Revenue and Gains" was reduced to 19% for the 2012 Quarter from 55% during the 2011
Quarter, primarily as a result of higher oil and gas revenue. The 'Non-recurring Expenses' discussed below are
included in, and not in addition to, G&A on the Statements of Operations.

Non-recurring Expenses

G&A in the 2011 Quarter included about $255,000 in non-recurring expenses (legal, accounting, professional and
transaction related fees and expenses) related to the Pure merger.
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In the 2012 Quarter, the Company incurred approximately $100,000 in G&A related to defense against a lawsuit and
proxy contest with a significant shareholder.  While both of these were settled during the second quarter of 2012, we
estimate additional related costs of about $100,000 will be expensed during the second quarter of 2012.

Additionally, during the second quarter of 2012 we anticipate an accrued expense of approximately $1.0 million
related to change in control payments triggered by the change in the composition of the board of directors that
occurred on May 8, 2012. The payments are scheduled to be made in four installments over the remainder of 2012.

We also anticipate filing an amendment to our registration statement during the second quarter of 2012 as a result of
the change in control.  Attorney and filing fees related to this process have not yet been estimated.

As a result of these pending expenses, we expect that our G&A as a percentage of revenue to be near its 2011 Quarter
level for the second quarter of 2012 and to decline again in the third quarter of 2012.

Price Risk Management Activities

During the 2012 Quarter, we recognized a loss of $473,913, which includes $51,416 of realized hedge settlements
paid for the difference between the hedged price and the market price in closed months, as well as a $422,497
non-cash mark to market loss on the remaining term of our crude oil fixed price swaps. This compares with a $30,266
non-cash mark to market gain recognized during the 2011 Quarter.  Our crude oil fixed price swaps currently cover a
total of 4,000 barrels of oil per month.  See the table in Note 11 for more information on these swaps.

Non-GAAP Financial Measures

Adjusted EBITDA

In addition to reporting net earnings (loss) as defined under GAAP, we also present net earnings before interest,
income taxes, depreciation, depletion, and amortization (adjusted EBITDA), which is a non-GAAP performance
measure. Adjusted EBITDA consists of net earnings after adjustment for those items described in the table below.
Adjusted EBITDA does not represent, and should not be considered an alternative to GAAP measurements, such as
net earnings (loss) (its most comparable GAAP financial measure), and our calculations thereof may not be
comparable to similarly titled measures reported by other companies. By eliminating the items described below, we
believe the measure is useful in evaluating its fundamental core operating performance. We also believe that adjusted
EBITDA is useful to investors because similar measures are frequently used by securities analysts, investors, and
other interested parties in their evaluation of companies in similar industries. Our management uses adjusted EBITDA
to manage our business, including in preparing its annual operating budget and financial projections. Our management
does not view adjusted EBITDA in isolation and also uses other measurements, such as net earnings (loss) and
revenues to measure operating performance. The following table provides a reconciliation of net earnings (loss), the
most directly comparable GAAP measure, to adjusted EBITDA for the periods presented:

Three Months Ended
March 31

2012
(As

Restated) 2011
Net income (loss) $727,649 $(154,916 )
Interest expense 131,758 105,156
Loan fee amortization 159,553 4,664
Income tax expense (benefit) - (25,698 )
Accretion of asset retirement obligations 4,889 26,416
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Depreciation, depletion, and amortization 544,117 584,290
Stock-based compensation - 30,492
Mark-to-market loss (gain) on commodity swaps 422,497 (30,267 )
Adjusted EBITDA $1,990,465 $540,137

Both Net Income and Adjusted EBITDA are expected to decline significantly for the second quarter of 2012 as a
result of the pending expenses discussed under "Non-recurring Expenses" on the previous page.
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LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Liquidity is a measure of ability to access cash. Our primary needs for cash are for exploration, exploitation,
development and acquisition of oil and gas properties, repayment of contractual obligations and working capital
funding. We have historically addressed our long-term liquidity requirements through cash provided by operating
activities, by the issuance of debt and equity securities when market conditions permit, through the sale of
non-strategic assets, and through our credit facilities. The prices for future oil and natural gas production and the level
of production have significant impacts on operating cash flows and cannot be predicted with any degree of certainty.
We continue to examine alternative sources of long-term capital, including bank borrowings, the issuance of debt
instruments, the sale of equity securities, the sales of strategic and non-strategic assets, and joint-venture financing.
Availability of these sources of capital and, therefore, our ability to execute our operating strategy will depend upon a
number of factors, some of which are beyond our control.

Redemption of Debentures

On March 1, 2012, we used approximately $3.3 million in the redemption of the remaining 7 ½ % Debentures, Series
2005 (the “Pure Debentures”) issued by Pure Energy Group in March 2005, that had been assumed in the Pure Merger.
The redemption of the Pure Debentures eliminated a covenant that limited the Company's senior debt to no more than
$5.0 million and allowed the borrowing base on our line of credit to increase in proportion to our increased proved
reserves.

Change in Control Liability

The Company will be required to pay approximately $0.5 million to employees during the second quarter of 2012, as
the result of the triggering of certain change in control provisions in agreements with employees.  The remaining
payments, also totaling approximately $0.5 million, will be due in two equal installments in September and December
of 2012.

Working Capital

At  March 31, 2012 our working capital deficit was $1,406,834, as compared to $40,086 at December 31, 2011.

At March
31, 2011

(As
Restated)

At December 
31, 2011

(As Restated)

Percentage
Increase /
(Decrease)

Current Assets $ 4,059,473 $ 3,488,192 16%
Current Liabilities 5,466,307 3,528,278 55%
    Working Capital $ (1,406,834) $ (40,086) (3410)%
Working Capital Ratio (0.74) (0.99) (25)%

Cash Flows
Three Months Ended

March 31
2012
(As

Restated) 2011
Cash Flows Provided by Operating Activities $ 2,127,942 $ 3,297,353

Edgar Filing: CROSS BORDER RESOURCES, INC. - Form 424B3

120



Cash Flows Used in Investing Activities (5,867,736) (4,393,897)
Cash Flows Provided by (Used in) Financing Activities 3,337,239 883,777
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash During Period $ (402,555) $ (212,767)

Cash used in operating activities is calculated by starting with the net income or loss for the period and adjusting for
the non-cash income and expense items during the period, as well as for the change in operating assets and
liabilities.  As an example: During the 2011 Quarter our Total Current Liabilities balance increased to $3.3 million
from $2.4 million.  This increase in liabilities, due primarily to increased activity levels, is reflected as a provision of
cash from operating activities, but reduces the current ratio. Conversely, the increase in accounts receivable, due to
higher crude oil sales, is a decrease to cash provided from operating activities.
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Cash used in investing activities represents capital expenditures for the drilling of wells. The increase in this measure
is a reflection of the increased level of drilling and completion activity for wells on our acreage.

Cash provided by financing activities represents funds from new borrowings under our line of credit, reduced by funds
used to redeem the Pure Debentures in full and repayment of indebtedness to creditors.

Amended and Restated Credit Agreement with Texas Capital Bank

On January 31, 2011, we entered into an amended and restated credit agreement (the “Credit Agreement”) with Texas
Capital Bank, N.A. (“TCB”).  The Credit Agreement provided the Company with an initial borrowing base of $4
million. Increases to the initial borrowing base were received on December 20, 2011 (to $4.5 million) and on March 1,
2012 (to $9.5 million).  The amount available under the Credit Agreement may be increased by TCB up to $25.0
based on the Company’s reserve reports and the value of the Company’s oil and gas properties.  Prior to the redemption
of the Pure Debentures, effective March 1, 2012, the Indenture for the Pure Debentures limited the Company's
borrowing amount to $5,000,000. As of March 31, 2012, the Company had available to it $0.2 million under the
Credit Agreement. During April 2012, we drew down the remaining available balance.  The Company has no other
credit facilities or source of cash, other than operating revenues. The Credit Agreement is described more fully in and
is attached as an exhibit to the Company’s Form 8-K dated February 7, 2011 and the amendment thereto is described
more fully and is attached as an exhibit to the Company's Form 8-K dated March 1, 2012.

As of March 31, 2012 the Company was not in compliance with its debt covenants; however the Company obtained a
waiver letter from the lending institution of its covenant violation.  

CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS

Little Bay and Green Shoe

At March 31, 2012, we are indebted to Little Bay Consulting SA (“Little Bay”) and Green Shoe Investments Ltd. (“Green
Shoe”) in the principal amounts of $396,969 and $367,309 respectively for loans refinanced in fiscal 2011, with a
combined accrued interest balance of $63,173. Those loans are due in full, with accrued interest at September 30,
2012, with no periodic payments until maturity (other than upon an equity raise resulting in net proceeds of more than
$1,000,000), as described more fully in the Company’s 8-K filed April 28, 2011.

OFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS

We have no significant off-balance sheet arrangements that have or are reasonably likely to have a current or future
effect on our financial condition, changes in financial condition, revenue or expenses, results of operations, liquidity,
capital expenditures or capital resources that is material to our stockholders.

However, the changes resulting from the Settlement Agreement signed on April 23, 2012 triggered the change in
control provisions under existing agreements with employees.  A total of approximately $1.0 million is payable to
employees in four installments over the remainder of 2012.  The costs will be reflected in G&A in the Statement of
Operations in the period in which they were triggered (April 2012). Approximately 50% will be paid in the second
quarter of 2012 and 25% each in the third and fourth quarters of 2012. Details of the payment calculation were
disclosed in the Company's Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2011, filed with the SEC on March 15, 2012.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
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The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles ("GAAP") in the
United States has required our management to make assumptions, estimates and judgments that affect the amounts
reported in the financial statements, including the notes thereto, and related disclosures of commitments and
contingencies, if any. Our significant accounting policies are disclosed in the notes to the interim financial statements
for the period ended March 31, 2012 included in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q/A.
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The financial statements presented with this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q/A have been prepared in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles in the United States of America for interim financial information. These
financial statements do not include all information and footnote disclosures required for an annual set of financial
statements prepared under United States generally accepted accounting principles. In the opinion of our management,
all adjustments (consisting solely of normal recurring accruals) considered necessary for a fair presentation of the
financial position, results of operations and cash flows for all periods presented in the attached financial statements,
have been included. Interim results for the period ended March 31, 2012 are not necessarily indicative of the results
that may be expected for the fiscal year as a whole.

Our significant accounting policies are disclosed at Note 2 to the unaudited financial statements included with this
Quarterly Report.

ITEM 4.     CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

(a)  Evaluation of disclosure controls and procedures

Our management, with the participation of our Interim President and Chief Accounting Officer, evaluated the
effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures pursuant to Rule 13a-15 under the Securities Exchange Act of
1934 as of March 31, 2012. In designing and evaluating the disclosure controls and procedures, management
recognizes that any controls and procedures, no matter how well designed and operated, can provide only reasonable
assurance of achieving the desired control objectives. In addition, the design of disclosure controls and procedures
must reflect the fact that there are resource constraints and that management is required to apply its judgment in
evaluating the benefits of possible controls and procedures relative to their costs.

Based on management’s evaluation, our Interim President and Chief Accounting Officer concluded that, as a result of
the material weaknesses described below, our disclosure controls and procedures are not designed at a reasonable
assurance level and are ineffective to provide reasonable assurance that information we are required to disclose in
reports that we file or submit under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized, and reported within the
time periods specified in SEC rules and forms, and that such information is accumulated and communicated to our
management, including our Interim President and Chief Accounting Officer, as appropriate, to allow timely decisions
regarding required disclosure.  The material weaknesses, which relate to internal control over financial reporting, that
were identified are:

1)  We did not properly apply business combination accounting to our acquisition of Doral and as a result we
inappropriately recorded goodwill and an intangible asset as part of that transaction.  As a result, we determined
that our consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2011 filed in the annual report on Form
10-K and our consolidated financial statements as of and for the three month period ended March 31, 2012 filed in
the quarterly report on Form 10-Q should not be relied upon and needed to be restated.;

2)  We did not properly accrue operating costs or capital expenditures for activity that occurred during the
fourth quarter of 2011. As a result, we determined that our consolidated financial statements for the year
ended December 31, 2011 filed in the annual report on Form 10-K and our consolidated financial
statements as of and for the three month period ended March 31, 2012 filed in the quarterly report on Form
10-Q should not be relied upon and needed to be restated.

We are committed to improving our accounting organization. In the future, should we contemplate a business
combination, we will consult with legal counsel and appropriate accounting resources to evaluate the financial
statement impact that the transaction may have. Additional measures may be implemented as we evaluate the
effectiveness of these efforts. We cannot assure you that these remediation efforts will be successful or that our
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internal control over financial reporting will be effective in accomplishing the control objectives.

(b)  Changes in internal control over financial reporting.

There were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the quarter ended March
31, 2012 that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial
reporting.
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ITEM 6.      EXHIBITS

Exhibit 
Number Description of Exhibits

3.1 Amended and Restated Bylaws as amended by Amendments No. 1 and No. 2. (1)
10.1 Consent, Waiver and First Amendment to Amended and Restated Credit Agreement with Texas Capital

Bank, N.A. (2)
10.2 First Amendment to Employment Agreement with Everett Willard "Will" Gray II. (2)
10.3 First Amendment to Employment Agreement with Lawrence J. Risley. (2)
10.4 Letter Agreement with Nancy S. Stephenson. (2)
10.5 Agreement with Red Mountain Resources, Inc. (3)
10.6 Second Amendment to Employment Agreement with Everett Willard “Will” Gray II. (3)
10.7 Second Amendment to Employment Agreement with Lawrence J. Risley. (3)
10.8 Amended Letter Agreement with Nancy S. Stephenson. (3)
10.9 Separation Agreement and Mutual Release with Everett Willard “Will” Gray II. (3)
10.10 Separation Agreement and Mutual Release with Lawrence J. Risley. (3)
10.11 Mutual Release with Nancy S. Stephenson. (3)
10.12 Mutual Release with Brad E. Heidelberg. (3)
31.1 Certification of Principal Executive Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
31.2 Certification of Principal Accounting Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
32.1 Certification of Principal Executive Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to

Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
32.2 Certification of Principal Accounting Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to

Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

101.INS XBRL Instance Document
101.SCH XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document
101.CAL XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document
101.DEF XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document
101.LAB XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document
101.PRE XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document

(1)   Filed as an exhibit to our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2011 on March 14,
2012.
(2)   Filed as an exhibit to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed on March 6, 2012.
(3)   Filed as an exhibit to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed on April 24, 2012.
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SIGNATURES

In accordance with the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report
to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

CROSS BORDER RESOURCES, INC.

By /s/Kenneth S. Lamb
Name: Kenneth S. Lamb
Title: Chief Accounting Officer
Date: August 31, 2012
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UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-Q

  (Mark One) 
x QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(D) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF

1934

For the quarterly period ended June 30, 2012

o TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(D) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF
1934

For the transition period from ________to ________

COMMISSION FILE NUMBER 000-52738

CROSS BORDER RESOURCES, INC.
(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

NEVADA 98-0555508
(State or other jurisdiction of incorporation or

organization)
(I.R.S. Employer Identification No.)

2515 McKinney Ave, Suite 900
Dallas, TX 75201

(Address of principal executive offices) (Zip Code)

(210) 226-6700
(Registrant's telephone number, including area code)

(Former name, former address and former fiscal year, if changed since last report)

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was

required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days.
x Yes o No

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate Web site, if
any, every Interactive Data File required to be submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T

(§232.405 of this chapter) during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required
to submit and post such files).

x Yes o No
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Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer,
or a smaller reporting company. See the definitions of “large accelerated filer,” “accelerated filer” and “smaller reporting

company” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.

Large accelerated filer o Accelerated filer o
Non-accelerated filer o (Do not check if a smaller

reporting company)
Smaller reporting company x

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act).
o Yes x No

Indicate the number of shares outstanding of each of the issuer's classes of common stock, as of the latest practicable
date:

As of September 18, 2012, the Registrant had 16,151,946 shares of common stock outstanding.
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PART I - FINANCIAL INFORMATION

ITEM 1.     FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The accompanying unaudited financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the instructions to Form
10-Q and Article 8-03 of Regulation S-X, and, therefore, do not include all information and footnotes necessary for a
complete presentation of financial position, results of operations, cash flows, and stockholders' equity in conformity
with generally accepted accounting principles. In the opinion of management, all adjustments considered necessary
for a fair presentation of the results of operations and financial position have been included and all such adjustments
are of a normal recurring nature. Operating results for the three- and six- month periods ended June 30, 2012 are not
necessarily indicative of the results that can be expected for the year ending December 31, 2012.

As used in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, the terms "we,” "us,” "our,” and the “Company” mean Cross Border
Resources, Inc. unless otherwise indicated.  All dollar amounts in this Quarterly Report are in U.S. dollars unless
otherwise stated.
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Cross Border Resources, Inc.
Balance Sheets

June 30, December 31,
2012 2011

(Unaudited) (As Restated)
ASSETS

Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 394,106 $ 472,967
Accounts receivable - production 2,785,721 1,184,544
Accounts receivable - related party 42,070 -
Derivative asset – current 525,014 -
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 605,054 1,808,944
Current tax asset 21,737 21,737
   Total Current Assets 4,373,702 3,488,192

 Property and Equipment:
   Oil and gas properties (successful efforts method) 43,607,136 34,986,566
Less accumulated depletion and depreciation (11,121,240) (9,667,031)
   Net Property and Equipment 32,485,896 25,319,535

Other Assets:
   Other property and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation of $149,245
and  $126,473 in 2012 and 2011, respectively 73,216 95,988
   Deferred bond costs, net of accumulated amortization of $503,854 and $344,300 in
2012 and 2011, respectively - 159,554
   Deferred bond discount, net of accumulated amortization of $186,560 and $127,483
in 2012 and 2011, respectively - 59,077
   Deferred financing costs, net of accumulated amortization of $64,353 and $26,355
in 2012 and 2011, respectively 150,273 64,746

  Derivative asset - long-term 331,037 -
   Other 54,324 54,324
      Total Other Assets 608,850 433,689

TOTAL ASSETS $ 37,468,448 $ 29,241,416

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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June 30, December 31,
2012 2011

(Unaudited) (As Restated)
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable - trade $ 2,407,320 $ 1,177,383
Accounts payable - revenue distribution 458,222 143,215
Interest payable 82,208 112,659
Accrued expenses and other payables 1,868,390 484,595
Deferred revenues - 32,479
Notes payable - current 764,278 764,278
Bonds payable – current portion - 570,000
Creditors payable – current portion 702,000 186,761
Change of control payable 623,347
Derivative liability – current portion -              56,908
   Total Current Liabilities 6,905,765 3,528,278

Other Liabilities:
Asset retirement obligations 1,268,990 1,186,260
Deferred income tax liability 21,737 21,737
Line of credit 9,500,000 2,381,000
Derivative liability, net of current portion - 28,086
Bonds payable, net of current portion - 2,825,000
Creditors payable, net of current portion 650,783 1,352,783
   Total Non-Current Liabilities 11,441,510 7,794,866

TOTAL LIABILITIES 18,347,275
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